
 

 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.www.leicestershire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 
  

 

Meeting: Cabinet  
 
 

 

Date/Time: Friday, 22 May 2020 at 11.00 am 

Location: Sparkenhoe Committee Room, County Hall, Glenfield 

Contact: Anna Poole (Tel. 0116 305 2583) 

Email: anna.poole@leics.gov.uk 

 
Membership 

 
Mr. N. J. Rushton CC (Chairman) 

 
Mr. R. Blunt CC 

Mr. L. Breckon JP CC 
Mr. I. D. Ould OBE CC 

Mr. B. L. Pain CC 
 

Mr. T. J. Pendleton CC 
Mr. J. B. Rhodes CC 
Mrs H. L. Richardson CC 
Mr. R. J. Shepherd CC 
 

 
Please note: This meeting will not be open to the public in line with Government 

advice on public gatherings.  
 

The meeting will be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via YouTube: 
www.youtube.com/channel/UCWFpwBLs6MnUzG0WjejrQtQ 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
Item   Report by   

 
  
  

1.  
  

Minutes of the meeting held on 28 April 2020.  
 

 
 

(Pages 3 - 10) 

2.  
  

To advise of any other items which the 
Chairman has decided to take as urgent 
elsewhere on the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

3.  
  

Declarations of interest in respect of items on 
the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy
http://www.youtube.com/channel/UCWFpwBLs6MnUzG0WjejrQtQ


 
 
 
 

 

 
4.  

  
Coronavirus (Covid-19) Impact and Response 
of the County Council.  
 

Chief Executive, 
Director of 
Corporate 
Resources and 
Director of Public 
Health. 
 

(Pages 11 - 12) 

5.  
  

Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 
2019 - 2029.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 13 - 42) 

6.  
  

Leaders Farm Development Proposal.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 43 - 56) 

7.  
  

Leicestershire Youth Justice Strategic Plan 
2020-23.  
 

Director of 
Children and 
Family Services 
 

(Pages 57 - 88) 

8.  
  

Dates of Council Meetings 2020-21 and  
2021-22.  
 

Chief Executive 
 

(Pages 89 - 90) 

9.  
  

Items referred from Overview and Scrutiny.  
 

 
 

 

10.  
  

Any other items which the Chairman has 
decided to take as urgent.  
 

 
 

 



 

  

 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Cabinet held at County Hall/ via Skype, Glenfield on 
Tuesday, 28 April 2020.  
 

PRESENT 
 

Mr. N. J. Rushton CC (in the Chair) 
 

Mr. R. Blunt CC 
Mr. L. Breckon JP CC 
Mr. I. D. Ould OBE CC 
Mr. B. L. Pain CC 
 

Mr. T. J. Pendleton CC 
Mr. J. B. Rhodes CC 
Mrs H. L. Richardson CC 
Mr. R. J. Shepherd CC 
 

 
 
In attendance 
 
Mrs. D. Taylor CC, Dr. T. Eynon CC, Mr. S. J. Galton CC, Mr. Max Hunt CC.   
 
 

397. Minutes of the previous meeting.  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 24 March 2020 were taken as read, confirmed and 
signed subject to the second paragraph in Minute 384 being amended to read: 
  
‘The Director of Corporate Resources explained that the financial risk to the County 
Council needed to be set in the context of the wider development of infrastructure by the 
County Council across Leicestershire, which would total over £600m over the next 15 
years. There was a particular financial risk to the County Council in building the southern 
section of the MMDR, for which only 20% of the £70m estimated cost of the road and 
school infrastructure would be funded by the Housing Infrastructure Fund Grant. 
Proceeding with this therefore currently relied on the County Council forward-funding in 
the region of £56m with no indication as to how or when it would be recouped.’ 
 

398. Urgent items.  
 
There were no urgent items for consideration. 
 

399. Declarations of interest.  
 
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of 
items on the agenda for the meeting. He declared a personal interest leading to bias in 
agenda item 4 (Coronavirus (Covid-19) Impact and Response of the County Council) with 
regard to the loan proposal to the Bradgate Park Trust. As Chairman of the Trust, he 
undertook to leave the room during discussion of that part of the report.   
 
Mr. B. L. Pain CC declared a personal interest in agenda item 8 (Mainstream and Special 
Educational Needs Home to School Transport Policies – 2020/21) as relatives owned a 
local taxi company. 
 
 

3 Agenda Item 1



 
 

 

400. Coronavirus (Covid-19) Impact and Response of the County Council.  
 
The Cabinet considered a joint report of the Chief Executive, Director of Corporate 
Resources, Director of Adults and Communities and Director of Public Health which 
advised of the impact of the Coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic within the County and the 
plans and work in hand within the County Council and with partners to respond. A copy of 
the report, marked ‘Agenda item 4’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
Members noted comments from Dr. T. Eynon CC on behalf of the Labour Group, a copy 
of which is filed with these minutes. 
 
In introducing the report, the Chief Executive paid tribute to the work of the Council’s 
Assistant Chief Executive, Tom Purnell, who had led on the Council’s resilience response 
to the pandemic.  
 
With reference to the work being undertaken to prepare some of the Council’s Recycling 
and Household Waste Sites for re-opening, the Chief Executive said that Government 
guidance was still awaited. He added that district councils had been asked to ensure at 
least two weeks’ worth of operational green and bulky waste collections was undertaken 
before sites were re-opened to avoid them becoming immediately overwhelmed. 
 
Mr Rushton CC welcomed the success of the Council’s Communities Fund, which had 
allocated over £1.2m to local voluntary and community sector organisations, and had 
been awarded the #togetherwecare award by Leicestershire Cares. 
 
The Cabinet asked that its appreciation to all those who were working to keep critical 
services going during the current circumstances be recorded. 
 
With permission of the Chairman, Dr Eynon CC addressed the Cabinet. She also thanked 
members of staff for their hard work and highlighted the major challenges the Council 
would face over the coming months. With reference to the Council’s recovery planning, 
she requested that an all member recovery group be established, which the Chairman 
agreed to consider. 
 
Mr Rhodes CC said that the impact on the Council’s finances would be significant and it 
continued to lobby Government for further funding to help mitigate the rising costs of 
responding to the pandemic. 
 
Mr. Rushton CC, having declared a personal interest leading to bias as Chairman of the 
Bradgate Park Trust, left the meeting at this point for the remainder of the item in order 
that the recommendation pertaining to this could be considered. 
 

Mr. B. L. Pain CC – in the Chair 
 
The Director of Corporate Resources said that the allocation of a £90,000 loan to the 
Bradgate Park Trust would help compensate for the loss of car parking and other income 
during its period of closure. He added that the Trust had used the Government’s Furlough 
Scheme and would be applying for other Government grants where available. 

 

4



 
 

 

RESOLVED: 
 
a) The Cabinet notes – 

 
i. The local declaration of a major incident with regard to Covid-19 and, 

accordingly, the passing of the Chairmanship of the Local Resilience 
Forum’s Gold Command Group for this incident to the Police; 
 

ii. Action taken by the Chief Executive, following consultation with the Leader 
of the Council, to increase the Leicestershire Communities Fund to £1.5m; 

 
iii. Action taken by Chief Officers following consultation with Cabinet Lead 

Members to close or reduce some County Council services to enable it to 
comply with national rules introduced to contain the spread of the virus and 
focus resources on essential services; 

 
iv. That, whilst further Government guidance on the reopening of recycling and 

household waste sites is awaited: 
 

 the County Council is planning to reopen some sites in the week 
commencing 18th May once the necessary arrangements, including 
social distancing and traffic management, and public 
communications, are in place; 
 

 it will be emphasised to all concerned that recycling and household 
waste sites are not substitutes for kerb side collections; 

 

 therefore, the Leicestershire district councils be all requested, in line 
with previous officer advice, to ensure there are two weeks’ worth of 
operational green and bulky waste collections completed prior to 
reopening of sites, so that the reopened sites are not immediately 
overwhelmed; 

 

 the County Council is liaising with the other waste disposal 
authorities in the East Midlands with the intention of minimising 
additional traffic on the roads by having consistent reopening 
arrangements across the region as far as possible. 

 
v. The significant financial impact that the Covid-19 pandemic is having on the 

Council’s finances and that only a part of the additional costs incurred will 
be met by Government grant; 

 
vi. That in light of (v) above, the Council will need to consider what services 

can be reduced or stopped and will undertake a fundamental review and 
reprioritisation of the current Capital Programme; 

 
vii. That work has commenced on ‘recovery’ and a report on this will be made 

to the Cabinet meeting on 23rd June; 
 

b) That a loan up to a maximum of £90,000 be made to the Bradgate Park Trust and 
that the Director of Corporate Resources be authorised to agree the terms of the 
loan; 
 

5



 
 

 

c) That the Cabinet’s thanks on behalf of the County Council be conveyed to Sichuan 
Province for its donation of Personal Protective Equipment; 
 

d) That Cabinet’s thanks on behalf of all members to County Council staff and the 
Local Resilience Forum be placed on record. 
 

REASONS FOR DECISION: 
 
To note the many issues that have arisen and actions that have been taken since the 
previous Cabinet meeting on 24th March.  
 
The County Council’s Communities Fund will help to support voluntary and community 
sector organisations across Leicestershire at this very difficult time. 
 
The Bradgate Park Trust had asked for a loan to help offset the loss of car parking and 
other income during the lockdown period; this was considered to be a reasonable request 
and can be dealt with by the Director of Corporate Resources. 
 
To put on record the Cabinet’s continued appreciation for the work done by Council 
officers and LRF partners and thanks for the donation from Sichuan Province. 
 

(Mr. Rushton then returned to the meeting and resumed the Chair) 
 

401. Leicestershire County Council's Revised Strategic Plan 2018 - 2022.  
 
The Cabinet considered a report of the Chief Executive regarding the outcome of 
consultation on the Council’s revised Strategic Plan 2018-22 and seeking approval for the 
Plan to be submitted to the County Council for approval. A copy of the report marked 
‘Agenda Item 5’ is filed with these minutes. 
 
Members noted comments from Mr D. C. Bill MBE CC, a copy of which is filed with these 
minutes. 
 
Mr Pain CC said that the revised Strategic Plan and Environment Strategy (the following 
item) took account of the Council’s declaration of a climate emergency in May 2019 and 
its target of achieving carbon neutrality for the Council’s own operations by 2030. He said 
that the Coronavirus pandemic had now required unprecedented changes to the way in 
which Leicestershire residents lived their lives and had had huge implications for the 
Council. The Council’s environmental ambitions remained unchanged and the climate 
emergency was an immediate and pressing challenge to be addressed in the Strategic 
Plan, Environment Strategy and in the Authority’s recovery planning.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

a) That the outcome of consultation with the Environment and Transport Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee and the Scrutiny Commission on the Council’s revised 
Strategic Plan 2018-2022 be noted; 
 

b) That the County Council at its meeting on the 8 July 2020 be recommended to 
approve the revised Strategic Plan.  
 

(KEY DECISION) 
 

6



 
 

 

REASONS FOR DECISION: 
 
To enable the revised Strategic Plan to be considered by the Council at its meeting on 8 
July 2020. The revised Plan sets out an approach which will put outcomes for people 
first, support integration across the Council’s services and make better use of the total 
resources available to the Council whilst ensuring its commitment to Leicestershire is in 
line with its declaration of a climate emergency in May 2019. 
 

402. Leicestershire County Council's Revised Environment Strategy and Action Plan.  
 
The Cabinet considered a report of the Director of Environment and Transport regarding 
the outcome of consultation on the Council’s Environment Strategy 2018 – 30, Action 
Plan and the Tranche 1 Carbon Reduction Roadmap and seeking approval for the 
Strategy and associated documents to be submitted to the County Council for approval. 
A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 6’ is filed with these minutes. 

 
Members noted comments from Mr Max Hunt CC, a copy of which is filed with these 
minutes. 
 
With the agreement of the Chairman, Mr Hunt CC addressed the Cabinet. He 
expressed concern that work to progress Tranche 2 targets, which covered the majority 
of carbon emissions across Leicestershire, was not planned to commence for some time.  
He said that the Tranche 2 work should be prioritised and to aid its development the 
Council should contribute to the recently published Department for Transport’s (DfT) draft 
Transport Decarbonising Plan. 

 
The Director said that the revised documents sought to enable the Council to meet its 
commitment for carbon neutrality with regard to its own operations by 2030. The Strategy 
also recognised the target of reaching carbon neutrality across the County by 2050, and 
the development of the Tranche 2 roadmap over the next year would establish how this 
would be achieved. This stage would be far more wide-ranging, including work with 
partners and agencies and taking account of opportunities to accelerate the carbon 
reduction as the County started to recover from the Coronavirus pandemic. The Council 
would be fully engaging with the development of the DfT Transport Decarbonising Plan. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

a) That the outcome of the consultation with the Environment and Transport 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Scrutiny Commission on the Council’s 
revised Environment Strategy, Action Plan and Tranche 1 Carbon Reduction Map, 
as detailed in paragraphs 43 to 47 of the report, be noted; 
 

b) That the County Council at its meeting on 8 July 2020 be recommended to: 
 

i. Approve the revised Environment Strategy 2018-2030, the associated 
revised Environment Strategy Action Plan, and Tranche 1 of the Carbon 
Reduction Roadmap; 
 

ii. Note that a further report presenting the complete Carbon Reduction 
Roadmap (incorporating the newly developed Tranche 2) will be considered 
by the County Council in the Summer of 2021. 

 

(KEY DECISION) 

7



 
 

 

 
REASONS FOR DECISION: 
 
To enable the revised Environment Strategy and supporting documents to be considered 
by the County Council at its meeting on the 8 July. Adoption of the documents will ensure 
the Authority has an up to date statement of its environmental priorities and objectives 
which is aligned with its climate emergency declaration and its framework for action to 
meet the global challenge of climate change and against which its performance can be 
objectively assessed. 
 
Work to develop the Tranche 2 section of the Carbon Reduction Roadmap will focus on 
the Council’s wider unmeasured emissions and the approach to reducing Leicestershire’s 
emissions. Both tranches will be combined into a single Carbon Reduction Roadmap 
which will be presented to the County Council for approval following consideration by the 
relevant scrutiny bodies and the Cabinet. 
 

403. Leicestershire County Council's Equality Strategy 2020-24 and Equality Action Plan 
2020/21.  
 
The Cabinet considered a report of the Chief Executive regarding the outcome of 
consultation on the Council’s revised Equalities Strategy 2020 – 2024 and seeking 
approval for the Strategy and associated Action Plan to be submitted to the County 
Council for approval. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 7’ is filed with these 
minutes. 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
a) That the outcome of the consultation on the Council’s draft Equality Strategy 2020 

- 2024, as detailed in paragraphs 20 to 35 of the report, be noted; 
 

b) That the County Council at its meeting on 8 July 2020 be recommended to 
approve the Equality Strategy 2020-24 and Equality Action Plan 2020-2021. 

 
(KEY DECISION) 
 
REASONS FOR DECISION: 
 
To enable the revised Equality Strategy and Action Plan to be considered by the Council 
at its meeting on 8 July 2020 
 
The Equality Strategy will provide a policy context for the Council’s activity around 
equality, diversity, and human rights and set out how the Council will meet its legislative 
duty for the period up to 2024.   
 

404. Mainstream and Special Educational Needs Home to School Transport Policies 2020/21.  
 
The Cabinet considered a report of the Director of Environment and Transport regarding 
the implementation of the Mainstream Home to School Transport Policy and Special 
Educational Needs Transport Policy which were approved by the Cabinet in March 2018. 
A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 8’ is filed with these minutes. 
 
Members noted comments from Mr Max Hunt CC, a copy of which is filed with these 
minutes. 

8



 
 

 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
a) That the implications of the appeal against part of the Judicial Review Decision 

published in July 2019 with regard to the implementation of the Council’s Post-16 
Special Educational Needs (SEN) Transport Policy, be noted; 
 

b) That the decision of the Director of Environment and Transport to further suspend 
introduction of a default Personal Transport Budget (PTB) offer for post-16 SEN 
students to the start of the 2021/22 academic year (the main element of the new 
Special Educational Needs Transport Policy) be noted; 
 

c) That the revised process for the calculation and payment of voluntary PTBs for 
pupils of all ages which will be introduced from the start of 2020/21 academic year 
be noted. 
 

(KEY DECISION) 
 
REASONS FOR DECISION: 
 
The implementation of part of the Post-16 SEN Home to School Transport Policy, the 
offer of a default PTB for post-16 SEN students, was suspended in July 2019 by the 
Director of Environment and Transport following consultation with the Cabinet Lead 
Member as a result of the judgment on the Judicial Review (JR) not being available. This 
significantly affected the Council’s ability to deliver transport provision for the new 
academic year in 2019. 
 
The Director’s decision, following consultation with the Lead Member for Environment 
and Transport, to suspend for another year (to September 2021) the implementation of 
default PTBs for post-16 SEN pupils was taken as the outcome of the appeal of the JR 
had not been issued and transport needed to be arranged for the 2020 academic year. 
Although the outcome of the appeal is now known there is insufficient time to plan and 
implement the revised transport offer in time for September 2020.   
 
Whilst fully upholding the Cabinet’s decision, the judge originally hearing the JR in April 
2019 suggested that the Council’s SEN PTB Scheme should in part be clarified as it was 
considered to be complex and unclear as to how any individual PTB amount could be 
calculated. A simpler, transparent and more generous voluntary PTB Scheme has been 
developed in response to the judge’s concerns. 
 

405. Items referred from Overview and Scrutiny.  
 
There were no items referred from Overview and Scrutiny. 
 
 

     2.00  - 3.21 pm CHAIRMAN 
28 April 2020 

 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

CABINET – 22 MAY 2020 
 

CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) IMPACT AND RESPONSE OF THE 
COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
JOINT REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR OF 

CORPORATE RESOURCES AND DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
 

PART A 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to advise the Cabinet of the impact of the 

Coronavirus (COVID-19) in the County and a) the plans and work in hand 

within the County Council and with partners to respond and b) the financial 

impact on the County Council. Supplementary reports will be circulated to 

members nearer the time. 

Recommendations 
 
2. The Cabinet is asked to have regard to the information in this and the 

subsequent supplementary reports. 
 

Reason for Recommendations 
 
3. To advise on the current position and financial impact on the Council. 
 
Background 
 
4. Coronaviruses are a family of viruses common across the world in animals and 

humans. COVID-19 is the illness seen in people infected with a new strain of 
coronavirus not previously seen in humans and began in Wuhan Province in 
China in December 2019. This has since spread to most parts of the world. 
 

5. The Cabinet considered a report on the matter at its meetings on 24 March and 
28 April 2020 which advised members on the impact of the virus within the 
County, the Council’s plans to respond and the joint working with partners that 
was in place. At these meetings, the Cabinet noted the Council’s work to help 
the most vulnerable, its focused efforts on critical services, agreed to establish 
a voluntary and community sector support scheme and noted the significant 
financial impact that Covid-19 is having on the Council’s finances.  

 

 

 

11 Agenda Item 4



 

6. Supplementary papers to this report are being produced by officers. These will 
include an update on the situation locally and details of the Council’s response, 
the Council’s immediate recovery plans following the recent Government 
announcement and the principles that will inform the recovery plans going 
forward. There will also be a report on the financial impact.  

 
Circulation under the Local Alerts Procedure 
 
7. A copy of this report has been emailed to all members of the County Council. 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Tom Purnell, Assistant Chief Executive 
Tom.Purnell@leics.gov.uk 
0116 305 7019 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Chris.tambini@leics.gov.uk 
0116 305 6119 
 
Mike Sandys, Director of Public Health 
Mike.Sandys@leics.gov.uk 
0116 305 4239 
 
Lauren Haslam, Director of Law and Governance 
Lauren.Haslam@leics.gov.uk 
0116 305 6240 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

12

mailto:Tom.Purnell@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Chris.tambini@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Mike.Sandys@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Lauren.Haslam@leics.gov.uk


 

CABINET - 22 MAY 2020 
 

COUNTRY PARKS AND OPEN SPACES STRATEGY 2019-2029  
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES   
 

PART A 
  
Purpose of the Report   
 
1. The purpose of this report is to advise the Cabinet on the outcome of the 

consultation on the draft Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029 
and to seek approval for the final Strategy (appended to this report).   

 
Recommendations   
 
2. It is recommended that: 

 
a) The comments of the Scrutiny Commission on the draft Strategy, and 

changes made as a result, be noted; 
 

b) The Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 – 2029 be approved.  
 

Reasons for Recommendation   
 
3. The Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy has been developed to give a 

strategic direction to developments, including maintenance and preservation, 
within country parks in Leicestershire over the next ten years.  

 
Timetable for Decisions (including Scrutiny)   
 
4. The draft Strategy was considered by the Scrutiny Commission on 27 January 

2020 and its comments are included in Part B of this report. 
 

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions   
 

5. The Cabinet at its meeting in October 2019 authorised the Director to progress 
work on an Action Plan covering the six main destination Country Parks and for 
this and the draft Strategy to be referred to the Scrutiny Commission for 
consideration. 

 
6. The Council’s Strategic Plan 2018-2022 sets out five strategic outcomes 

deemed to be essential for a good quality of life for Leicestershire residents. It 
establishes a clear vision for the place and its people and aspires to have a 

13 Agenda Item 5



more joined-up approach to service delivery. The Country Parks and Open 
Spaces Strategy will contribute towards two of those outcomes:  Wellbeing and 
Opportunity (ensuring that people have the opportunities and support to take 
control of their health and wellbeing) and Great Communities (thriving and 
integrated places where people help and support each other and take pride in 
their local area).  

 

7. The Leicestershire Communities Strategy 2017-2021 sets out how, by working 
with partners and local communities the Council can make real improvements, 
including to people’s health, social networks, and the environment.  The 
proposed approach to the management of its country parks accords with and 
supports this. 

 

8. The new Strategy will help support the Council’s Environment Strategy 2018-
2030: Delivering a Better Future, which is currently being refreshed, by 
delivering on several of the Environment Strategy’s key aims, including “Carbon 
and Climate Change Impacts” and “Biodiversity, Habitats and Environment”. 
This will be principally through delivering on Priority Theme 2 in the Country 
Parks Strategy: “Ensure that the biodiversity, heritage and landscape values of 
all sites are conserved and developed”.  

 

9. The Council’s draft Tree Management Strategy 2019-2024 notes that Country 
Parks have the greatest percentage of local authority owned trees in the 
county. The strategic aims of the Tree Management Strategy will be contributed 
to through Priority Theme 1 “Provide a network of safe and accessible parks” 
and Priority Theme 2 “Ensure that the biodiversity, heritage and landscape 
values of all sites are conserved and developed” in the Country Parks Strategy.  

 

10. The Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy is aligned with the Council’s 
Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2020/21 - 2023/24, approved by the 
County Council on 19 February 2020. 

 

11. Set within this context, the underlying principle of the “Country Parks and Open 
Spaces Strategy” will be to use parks and open spaces to provide multiple 
benefits that will support the citizens and communities of both today and 
tomorrow and support the Council in delivering its wider strategic objectives. 

 
Resource Implications   

 
12. In 2018/19 the total expenditure on country parks was £770,000, the total 

income was £440,000 resulting in an overall net cost of £330,000. 
 
13. As a result of this Strategy, the overall net cost of country parks is forecast to 

fall to £150,000 by 2023/24. 
 
14. The Director of Law and Governance has been consulted. 
 

14



Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure   
 

15. A copy of this report will be circulated to all members of the Council.  
 

Officers to Contact    
 
Chris Tambini 
Director of Corporate Resources 
Chris.tambini@leics.gov.uk 
0116 305 6199 
 
Roderick O’Connor 
Assistant Director, Commercial and Customer Services 
Roderick.O'Connor@leics.gov.uk 
0116 305 5846 
 
Richard Hunt, Head of Country Parks and Estates 
Richard.hunt@leics.gov.uk 
0116 305 9293 
   

 

15

mailto:Chris.tambini@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Richard.hunt@leics.gov.uk


PART B 
 

Background 
   
16. The population of Leicestershire is projected to grow by 16% by 2041 and there 

are ambitious plans to develop new houses and develop the local economy 
over the coming years.  The Council needs also to think how it can continue to 
maintain and sustain green spaces that will support modern lifestyles by having 
safe, interesting and accessible country parks.     
 

17. Although parks and open spaces are enjoyed by many, they are not a statutory 
service. However, the Strategy recognises that they are an important asset, 
and one that can be positioned to support the Council’s strategic outcomes as 
well as meeting the needs and expectations of communities. Whilst there is a 
clear commitment to deliver improvements there are also challenges. The 
infrastructure needs to be maintained and improved with the limited funding that 
is available, and the financial pressures on the Authority mean that 
expectations around investment need to be managed and more innovative 
ways, including seeking more grant funding, to maintain and expand the 
country parks services need to be identified. 

 
18. The Council’s vision for its parks and open spaces remains: 
 

“To have great parks that improve the quality of life for Leicestershire’s 
communities and visitors”.  

 
19. As explained in previous reports to the Cabinet and the Scrutiny Commission, 

the Strategy establishes a framework within which the Council can improve the 
parks over the long-term against the backdrop of limited and uncertain funding.  
It seeks to build on existing community support in developing volunteering 
opportunities and partnership working, including with other organisations such 
as the National Forest Company and the Leicestershire and Rutland Wildlife 
Trust, encourage commercial organisations to exercise their corporate social 
responsibility through sponsorship and investment, work in partnership with 
elected members and Parish Councils, and use income generated at the Parks 
to help preserve and maintain them for the future. 

 

20. The Strategy distinguishes between the main sites and lesser parks and open 
spaces. The main ‘destination’ parks are those which are generally the reason 
for people’s visit and not only cater for the local community but attract visitors 
from further afield:   

 
 Snibston Colliery Park – 28.95 ha (hectares) 

 Beacon Hill Country Park – 123.83 ha 

 Broombriggs Farm and Windmill Hill Country Park – 70.34 ha 

 Watermead Country Park – 99.97 ha 

 Market Bosworth Country Park – 35.43 ha 

 Bosworth Battlefield Country Park – 13.37 ha. 
 

16



21. Although the Strategy distinguishes between these main sites and lesser parks 
and open spaces, the Council remains committed to working with local 
communities to develop and manage these lesser parks, whilst acknowledging 
that they cannot be made financially sustainable in the way that is possible for 
the destination parks. 

 

22. Within the next 12 months more detailed management plans for the six 
destination parks will be developed and other plans for some of the other parks 
and open spaces will be commenced. These will contain detail on estates 
management, to ensure a good quality standard, keeping parks and open 
spaces clean, green, accessible and safe. 

 
23. The Council will continue its commitment to provide a park ranger service to all 

the main country parks to ensure the wellbeing of the site and of its visitors. 
Access to sites is generally good and surfaced routes will continue to be 
extended to improve access and connectivity. 

 

24. The long-term effects of COVID-19 on the strategy are mixed. The closures of 
Country Parks on 22 March 2020 and Government restrictions on movement 
have meant considerable delays to a number of maintenance and development 
programmes and will result in a delay to the overall delivery of the Strategy of at 
least six months. Even as lockdown is released, it will take time for Country 
Parks to return to their previous level of activity and managing demand 
alongside social distancing requirements will prove challenging. A phased 
approach is likely to be adopted with some visitor facilities remaining closed for 
a much longer period. More positively, the effects of lockdown have meant that 
the importance of open spaces is being increasingly recognised and suggests 
there will be an increased demand for parks once lockdown is lifted. 
 

25. Financially, the effects of COVID-19 have meant that the income that Country 
Parks receive from car parking, cafes, events and concessions has ceased or 
reduced. The vast majority of funding organisations that would have been 
approached for support with projects have also diverted their attention to 
immediate relief for organisations affected by COVID-19 and are not accepting 
applications to their normal grant programmes at present although it is 
expected that this will be resumed in the future. As most of the expenditure for 
Country Parks relates to environmental management, the demands of which 
continue despite the lockdown, the financial year 2020-2021 is likely to prove 
challenging. 

 
Comments of the Scrutiny Commission and Officer Response 

 
26. The Scrutiny Commission considered a report at its meeting on 27 January 

2020. 
 
27. Members welcomed the Strategy, in particular the assurance that all Country 

Parks and open spaces were valuable assets that would be looked after and 
raised the following points: 

 

17



a. It was felt that the level of housing and economic growth proposed for 
Leicestershire emphasised the importance of parks and open spaces, 
which could form a key part of local communities and were available for 
everyone to enjoy. It was also noted that there was enthusiasm in 
some parts of the county for Friends groups to work with Country 
Parks. 

 
b. People should not be excluded from visiting the parks through 

increased car parking charges but that there was also a need to 
consider green initiatives such as sustainable travel schemes.  It was 
suggested that the County Council work with community groups and 
litter-producing businesses in this area and officers undertook to follow 
these suggestions up.  Members were reminded that the Country Parks 
also needed to have reasonable parking available and that charges 
covered maintenance of the car parks. 

 
c. Some disappointment was expressed that there were very few Country 

Parks in the south and east of the County.  However, members were 
reminded that some parks had been gifted to the Council, or had been 
acquired as the opportunity arose, for example from reclaimed former 
coalfields and a number of parks and green spaces across the county 
were owned by district councils.  As part of new developments such as 
Lutterworth East, consideration would be given to establishing new 
Country Parks or open spaces and the Strategy has been amended to 
include this aspiration. At the members’ suggestion, a comprehensive 
list of publicly-owned parks and open spaces in Leicestershire has now 
been added to the Strategy, including the County Council-owned site of 
special scientific interest at Misterton Marshes. 

  
d. One of the priorities for the Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 

should be carbon neutrality or offsetting the County Council’s carbon 
footprint, for example through tree planting.  The importance of Country 
Parks in helping the Council to achieve net-zero carbon is now 
reflected more strongly in the Strategic Outcomes of the Strategy. 

 
e. The Commission was pleased to note that the County Council was 

making the most of opportunities to work with local businesses that 
were focused on social responsibility.  The need to balance commercial 
activity with providing a service for local communities was recognised, 
as was the aim for the Country Parks to be cost neutral. 

 
28. An outline action plan was presented to Scrutiny Commission covering all of the 

six main parks in some detail and the secondary parks at a high level. More 
detailed management plans will be developed, initially for each of the 
destination parks and for all parks in time. These will be created in consultation 
with officers from all internal departments and local members. 

 
29. As individual plans are developed for each of the destination parks they will be 

shared with local Parish Councils and the local member(s), and views of local 
communities will be sought through annual online surveys. 

18



 

30. There will be specific consultation with officers from the Council’s Public Health 
Department about organising sponsored walks, cross country and park runs, as 
well as other outdoor events involving schools, clubs and local communities. 

 
31. Feedback from the Cabinet at its meeting in October 2019 and from the 

Scrutiny Commission has been incorporated into the final Strategy. 
 
Conclusion 
 
32. Country parks and open spaces are part of what makes Leicestershire a great 

place to live. These are exciting times and we want parks and open spaces to 
be a key part of Leicestershire’s future. The Strategy will provide a framework 
and deliver the impetus for their maintenance and improvement.  

 
33. Green assets can contribute to positive health, social, environmental and 

economic improvements. The Council wants its parks and open spaces to 
deliver as many positive outcomes for citizens and communities as possible 
and to do this needs to adopt a strategic approach to their management. 

 
Equality and Human Rights Implications   
 
34. There are no equality or human rights implications arising from the 

recommendations in this report. The Strategy commits the Council to 
developing relationships with local communities and community groups to 
encourage greater participation and visitor diversity. The report acknowledges 
that any future change to the Council’s policies, procedures, functions and 
services because of the strategy or the more detailed plans will be the subject 
of an Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment.  

 
Environmental Implications 
 
35. The Strategy delivers positively for the environment of Leicestershire, 

committing the Council to strengthening biodiversity and habitats, mitigating the 
effects of climate change through effective tree management and encouraging 
better appreciation of wildlife by visitors to Country Parks.  

 
Background Papers   

 
Leicestershire Communities Strategy 2017-2021 
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2019/3/8/Communities-Strategy-2017-21.pdf 

 
Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2018-2022 
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-plans/the-strategic-plan 

 
Report to the Council on 19 February 2020: MTFS 2020/21 – 2023/24 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=6038&Ver=4 

 

19

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=6038&Ver=4


Appendix 
 
Leicestershire Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019-2029 

20



Published April 2020

Country Parks 
and Open Spaces 
Strategy 2019-2029

21



2  Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029

Foreword by Councillor Byron Rhodes  
Lead member for Finance and Resources  
and lead member for Country Parks

The environment around us is more important than ever. Now, more than at any other time, we are all taking 
more notice of the changes to our climate, the impact of our actions, and what the future may hold.

It’s for this reason that I believe this strategy is a vital document. Country parks and open spaces are not legally 
required and - yes - they cost money to run, when money is tight. But they are so fundamentally important.

Firstly, I believe we must safeguard our green spaces as part of our carbon agenda. Trees and plants are natural 
warriors against the climate emergency which has been recognised globally.

Secondly, our parks are welcome habitats for plants, insects and animals. We must protect and enhance this 
diversity.

And finally, for residents to enjoy – for sport, for mental wellbeing and as part of their community.

I urge you to read on.

Byron Rhodes
April 2020

Contents

1. Executive summary ..................................................................................................................... 3

2. Strategic context - Leicestershire our county ................................................................................. 5

3. Purpose of the strategy ................................................................................................................ 6

4. An integrated approach ............................................................................................................... 7

5. Vision ......................................................................................................................................... 8

6. Core principles ............................................................................................................................ 8

7. Priority themes ............................................................................................................................ 9

8. Our parks ..................................................................................................................................13

9. Communicating the strategy ...................................................................................................... 20

10. Funding our strategy ................................................................................................................ 20

11. Monitoring and review ............................................................................................................. 20

12. Summary ............................................................................................................................... 20

22



3  Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029

1. Executive Summary
Leicestershire County Council has a wide network of country parks and 
open spaces.
Although the provision of country parks is not a statutory service or a council priority it is recognised that they 
are a key asset that we can use to support the delivery of the many of the council’s strategic objectives.

This strategy sets out our approach to developing our country parks and provides a framework for working 
across departments and engaging with partners, citizens and communities to ensure we continue to provide 
great parks for the residents and visitors of Leicestershire.

The strategy sets out our ambition about what we want to achieve whilst recognising the financial challenges 
the council faces as one of the lowest funded councils in England.

It outlines how we will adopt an innovative approach to increasing our income and working with our national 
partnership organisations; communities and local businesses to explore funding, sponsorship and grant 
opportunities where ever possible to support the development of our parks and open spaces. This is supported 
by our ambitions to adopt a more robust approach to increasing participation and volunteering across all our 
park activities.

In summary our country parks and open spaces are an asset that we are committed to continuing to develop; 
protect and preserve for existing and future generations to enjoy.  We hope that you will participate and support 
us to deliver the strategy and achieve our ambitions.

There is huge scope and  
potential and as the 21st  

Century evolves, there is a  
growing body of evidence  

which demonstrates that parks  
and open spaces can have  
a positive impact that goes  
beyond traditional ecological  
and environmental outcomes

There is huge scope and  

potential and as the 21st  

Century evolves, there is a  

growing body of evidence  

which demonstrates that parks  

and open spaces can have  

a positive impact that goes  

beyond traditional ecological  

and environmental outcomes

23



4  Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029

It is an exciting opportunity. There is huge scope 
and potential and as the 21st Century evolves, 
there is a growing body of evidence which 
demonstrates that parks and open spaces can 
have a positive impact that goes beyond traditional 
ecological and environmental outcomes and that 
they can make a broader contribution towards 
promoting economic and health benefits as well 
as improving quality of life. Moreover, through 
their use, they can further social cohesion and 
engagement, inspire community spirit and even 
provide opportunities for individuals to overcome 
loneliness and regain purpose within their lives.

This strategy aims to provide a framework for 
action that will transform our parks and position 
them to be at the centre of delivering positive 
environmental, ecological, health and social 
outcomes for citizens and communities as well as 
visitors to Leicestershire. Through our parks and 
open spaces strategy the county council has an opportunity to develop facilities that will enable greater social 
interaction and more active recreation as well as providing peaceful space for quiet reflection. The wide range 
of direct and indirect benefits could be far reaching.

Over the next decade, our plans will progress 
incrementally and adapt to the challenges 
presented by an ever-changing world and to 
accommodate the changing expectations of 
citizens. Our ambition is great but needs to be 
focused within the resources we have available. 
Nonetheless, we believe that through volunteering, 
community engagement and partnership working, 
we can create welcoming, safe, inclusive and 
accessible parks for the citizens and communities 
of Leicestershire and visitors. 

24



5  Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029

2. Strategic Context – Leicestershire our county
Set in the heart of England, Leicestershire is a mainly rural county with 
picturesque villages, rolling farmland and wonderful examples of historic and 
natural environment.

With a population of over 650,000, the area is 
generally affluent, unemployment is below the 
national average and Leicestershire ranks amongst 
the top places to bring up a family as the cost of 
living is comparatively low and house prices are 
below the national average.

Leicestershire also has the largest economy in the 
East Midlands and is home to major international 
businesses including: Next, Caterpillar, Santander, 
and DHL. With strong creative industries, food 
manufacturing and health sectors, Leicestershire is 
a great place to do business.

Further growth is anticipated and the Leicester 
and Leicestershire Enterprise Partnership (LLEP) 
has strategic economic plans which aim to create 
45,000 jobs, support the expansion of 15,000 
businesses and the creation of over 1,000 

startups. Furthermore, around 187,000 homes are set to be built in the city and county over the next 30 years 
as the population of Leicestershire is projected to increase by 15.8% to 787,500 by 2041, an increase of 
107,100 people from 2016.

Balanced with these developing opportunities there are emerging social challenges. It has been estimated that 
by 2030 the number of people aged 85 and over will increase from 17,700 (2015 estimate) to 33,100 - an 
increase of 87%, and the number of people with complex disabilities will increase by 30%. It is also projected 
that 56,000 men and 58,000 women are living in the ‘age gap’ between healthy life expectancy and life 
expectancy potentially in poor health. This accounts for 17% of the population in the county. Around two-
thirds of deaths among the under 75s are caused by diseases and illness that are largely avoidable, and there 
are increasing numbers of health-related issues due to sedentary lifestyles and obesity.

Climate change is also an ongoing and evolving threat and we are all experiencing 
extreme fluctuations of weather such as heatwaves and severe flooding. Our parks 
and open spaces are already being affected by these changes but also play a crucial 
role in reducing the negative effects of climate change. As climate change intensifies 
so our parks and open spaces will have a more significant role to play around flood 
management, tree planting and sustainable fuel.

25



6  Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029

3. Purpose of the strategy
Set within this context, the underlying principle of our strategy will be to use 
our parks and open spaces to provide multiple benefits that will support the 
citizens and communities of today and tomorrow.
Our approach will be influenced by consultation and engagement and the detail of specific park plans will 
support the delivery of integrated health, socio-economic and environmental priorities.

There is now an opportunity to use our green space to tackle a wide range of ecological and environmental 
benefits and beyond. Undeniably, many of the solutions for preserving and protecting the natural environment 
are also potential enablers to support health and wellbeing and develop local communities and the local 
economy.

In a nutshell, the aim of our strategy is to explore 
a sustainable way to manage and fund our parks 
and open spaces across Leicestershire so that 
they can be utilised to support broader strategic 
priorities and align with the needs of our citizens 
and communities as well as national, regional and 
local policy priorities.

The strategy sets out our long-term approach 
up until 2029. The specific detail will later be 
developed in more comprehensive plans for our 
primary and secondary sites, which will then be 
reviewed annually in tandem with light touch 
consultation and ongoing engagement.

26



7  Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029

4. An integrated approach
Underpinning this strategy is a desire to utilise the asset of our parks and open spaces to work seamlessly 
across departments and more joined up with partners and communities to deliver integrated strategic 
objectives. In achieving this, we also want to capture the voice of the citizen and communities and also to 
enable user greater participation in shaping the plans of individual parks. 

Health and 
Wellbeing

Maximise opportunities  
for activities that  

support physical and 
mental health and 

wellbeing

Infrastructure 
and Facilities

Improve our physical 
assets to enhance visitor 

experience and 
participation

Culture and 
Heritage

Preserve and celebrate 
our parks’ heritage and  

develop new events 
and activities

Education  
and Learning
Provide a safe and 

secure environment for play, 
learning, social interaction 

sport and recreationEcology and 
Environment

Work to enhance our local 
biodiversity and increase the 

sustainability of our open 
spaces, helping the 

Council to achieve net 
zero carbon 

Volunteering 
and Community

Increase our volunteering 
opportunities and seek ways 

to encorage community 
engagement in the 

development and use 
of our parks

In our parks 
we will...

Finance  
and Funding

Increase our opportunities 
for investment in our parks 
by actively seeking funding; 
working in partnership with 

local businesses and 
increasing revenue

27



8  Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029

6. Core principles
Underpinning our vision are a set of core principles:
• Country parks and open spaces are not a statutory service, but they are a county council asset that 

can contribute to the wider objectives of the council including health, education, biodiversity and the 
environment

• Parks and open spaces will be safe and accessible for citizens and visitors and central to everyday 
community life

• The strategy will develop a vision that will be shaped with elected members, officers across all key services, 
partners and communities

• Volunteering, community engagement and partnership participation are integral to delivery of the strategy

• Our parks will become sustainable through the income that we generate through them and funding that we 
access

5. Our vision 

The Council’s Vision:
To have great parks that 
improve the quality of 
life for Leicestershire’s 
communities and visitors

28



9  Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029

7. Priority themes

1. Provide a network of safe and accessible parks

We will ensure that high quality, safe and accessible parks and open spaces are provided, maintained 
and improved to support our existing and future communities, with greater connectivity linked by 
pedestrian and cycle routes and improved green corridors.

Goals:
• Enhance the visitor facilities within our parks and develop a plan for proactive maintenance
• Ensure good access to our park areas and improved paths to enable all residents to enjoy our parks
• Maximise opportunities for physical activity and supporting mental health well being
• Each of our primary parks will have a five-year action plan
• As part of new developments such as Lutterworth East, consideration will be given to establishing new 

Country Parks or open spaces

Actions - how we will do this:
• Developing our café, picnic, seating and toilet facilities
• Developing more cost-effective, multipurpose pathways and providing accessible trails for all levels of ability
• Improving signage and site interpretation and developing route maps
• Developing our outdoor recreational activities and play equipment for children in specific parks

29



10  Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029

2. Ensure that the biodiversity, heritage and landscape values of all sites are 
conserved and developed

We will work with partners to ensure that we preserve the distinctive character of our landscapes, enhance 
and enhance existing areas of biodiversity and contribute to climate change by aligning with the key objectives 
of the Leicestershire Environment Strategy.

Goals:
• Increase the biodiversity within our parks with a greater appreciation for developing appropriate habitats for 

plants, birds and other wildlife
• Identify and manage pressure points of high usage to ensure our heritage sites continue to be preserved
• Increase the sustainability of our parks by encouraging environmental practices
• Manage our heritage assets so that there is a greater appreciation of the value of heritage and conservation

Actions - how we will do this:
• Creating and enhancing pollinator habitats and species-rich environments
• Improving the local ecological networks through the preservation and development of wildlife corridors
• Raising public awareness of the importance of our biodiversity and how they can help to support its 

conservation
• Offering a programme of environmental activities and guided wildlife experiences

30



11  Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029

3. Ensure widespread engagement and participation of citizens, communities 
and partners

We want to create and deliver public value through volunteering, community engagement, consultation  
and partnership working. Therefore, we will work to improve the number of visitors and aspire to appeal  
and cater for diverse audiences. We will engage with communities and partners to attract and work with 
under- represented and hard to reach groups.

Goals:
• Develop our relationships with local communities and community groups to encourage greater participation 

and visitor diversity
• Increase the range of volunteer opportunities to build skills, create social cohesion and instil a sense of pride 

and ownership
• Develop strong links with Leicestershire schools and academies to work together to support learning
• Encourage participation in environmental activities of all abilities

Actions - how we will do this:
• Appoint a volunteer co-ordinator to increase volunteers
• Conduct consultation with interested groups and organisations
• Develop more educational activities with schools and park rangers
• Work more closely with communities and parish councils to identify needs and aspirations
• Develop activities to support health and wellbeing, such as park runs

31



12  Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029

4. Develop a sustainable financial model for growth

The council continues to face financial challenges and we remain as one of the lowest funded county councils 
in England. We will therefore adopt a more commercial approach to increasing income, review outdoor charges 
and licence fees. Our Leicestershire country parks will remain in council ownership, but we will explore funding 
through: income generation, funding, sponsorship and donations.

Goals:
• Identify new ways of funding
• Increase our commercial activities
• Obtain sponsorship for events and activities by working in partnership with local businesses
• Secure funding through Section 106 planning obligations
• Encourage donations and legacies

Actions - how we will do this:
• Developing our marketing and advertising
• Monitoring and keeping under review our café and catering offers
• Developing a programme of events to increase number of visitors and revenue
• Seeking opportunities for applying for local and national funding and grants
• Maximising social value opportunities from our key suppliers

32



13  Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029

8. Our parks

Destination parks
Our major parks will be developed as 
a network of destinations, catering 
for the local community that they 
serve but also attracting residents and 
visitors from further afield.

1  Snibston Colliery Park

2  Beacon Hill Country Park

3  Broombriggs Farm  
 & Windmill Hill

4  Watermead Country Park

5  Market Bosworth Country Park

6  Bosworth Battlefield  
 Country Park

Secondary parks  
and open spaces
Our secondary parks and open spaces, 
whilst not having the same scope as our 
destination parks, are still a significant 
part of our green infrastructure. They 
will still be managed in accordance with 
the primary themes of the strategy but 
perhaps with them there will be even 
greater opportunity to involve and engage 
the local community and partners and 
they are therefore classified more as local 
parks than destination parks.

7  Donington Le Heath Country Park
8  Jubilee Wood
9  Sheet Hedges Wood
10 Burrough Hill Country Park
11  Sarah’s Wood
12 Donisthorpe Woodland Park
13 Saltersford Valley Picnic Areas
14 Bagworth Heath Woods
15 New Lount Nature Reserve
16 Oakthorpe Picnic Area
17  Ashby Woulds Heritage Trail
18 Brampton Valley Way

Other country parks
Blaby DC
19 Fosse Meadows Country Park
20 Glen Parva & Glen Hills  
 Nature Reserves
Charnwood BC
21 Charnwood Water
22 The Outwoods

Forestry England
23 Hick’s Lodge
24 Sence Valley

Hinckley & Bosworth BC
25 Billa Barra Hill
26 Burbage Common

Melton BC
27 Melton Country Park

Oadby & Wigston BC
28 Brocks Hill Country Park

A607

A47

A50

A6

A50

A6

A47

M1

M1

M69

ASHBY DE LA ZOUCH

LOUGHBOROUGH

 

HINCKLEY

LUTTERWORTH

MARKET 
HARBOROUGH

MELTON MOWBRAY

LEICESTER

COALVILLE

Locations of our 
country parks

1
2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

14

15

18

1617
1213

19

20

22

23

24
25

26

27

28

21

29
29 Misterton Marshes SSSI – no current public access

33



14  Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029

Snibston

Snibston Colliery Park comprises of an area of woodland and grassland on the old Snibston colliery site and 
includes the woodland and lakes of the Grange nature reserve. The country park lies immediately to the south 
of the Snibston industrial heritage area where the mining headstock is classified as a Scheduled Ancient 
Monument (SAM). Both the park and heritage area are included in the current Snibston development plans.

Objectives

• Redevelopment of the site with a new cycleway, mountain bike trails and café

• Provide a safe and accessible park

• Develop the site to balance the needs of a changing community

• Develop and improve existing facilities for walking, jogging and family cycling on the site

• Develop the site as a hub for the community 

34



15  Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029

Beacon Hill

Beacon Hill takes its name from its history as a signaling point. Up until the early part of the 20th Century, 
Beacon Hill was part of the Beaumanor estate, owned by the Perry-Herrick family. In 1947, the site was 
purchased by Leicestershire County Council to protect its value as a public open space. In the early 1970s 
Beacon Hill was designated as a country park and has now become one of the premier visitor attractions 
in Leicestershire at the gateway of the National Forest. The heathland of Beacon Hill is an important site for 
wildlife, providing varied habitats for a wide range of plants and animals. Due to its ecological and geological 
importance, much of the country park is designated a Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and areas 
around the summit are protected as a scheduled ancient monument (SAM).

Objectives

• Develop the park as a family destination

• Install more children’s equipment

• Develop the café as a focal point of community engagement

• Develop the Labyrinth as a children’s attraction

• Continue to manage the woodland and heathland SSSIs

35



16  Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029

Broombriggs Farm

Broombriggs Farm was donated to Leicestershire County Council in 1970 by the Frear family. Their desire was 
to preserve its natural beauty as a typical Charnwood Forest farm so that it could be enjoyed by all visitors.

Today, the farm is still managed in traditional ways which help to retain its varied landscapes and fine views 
across the surrounding countryside. Arable crops are mainly grown in some of the lower lying fields on the 
farm. These have relatively good, fertile, easily worked soils. The fields are either sown with cereals such as 
barley, wheat or oats or with other arable crops such as turnips. The upper fields on the farm are used mainly 
to graze livestock. The farmland is interspersed with small woodlands and parkland trees creating an attractive 
landscape.

Objectives

• Continue to improve visitor access around the farm

• Develop farming practices to demonstrate conservation farming

• Expand the orchard and develop agro-forestry schemes

• Expand capacity for visitor car parking

• Utilise Broombriggs Cottage

36



17  Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029

Watermead

Watermead Country Park covers an area of 100 hectares and comprises wetlands, grassland, meadows and 
marshland. Lying on the north edge of Leicester city, it is bounded by the large villages of Thurmaston, Birstall 
and Syston. It is in the valley of the River Soar and Grand Union Canal, an area which has been worked 
extensively for sand and gravel. It is a very significant “green lung”, with several ecologically significant areas 
including one of the largest Reedbeds in the county. Watermead provides visitor opportunities for walking, 
cycling, jogging, picnicking and bird watching. The park is managed in association with colleagues at the city 
council who look after the southern area of the country park.

Objectives

• Develop café/catering facilities

• Repair/replace the existing toilet block

• Introduce new children’s play facilities

• Rationalise car parking arrangements on satellite car parks (e.g. Mill Lane)

• Improve nature reserve habitats and develop opportunities for wildlife watching

• Enhance and protect biodiversity

37



18  Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029

Market Bosworth

Market Bosworth Country Park contains a mix of open grassland, parkland and woodland. The park has 
facilities for picnics and barbeques, and a play area. The park contains a network of surfaced paths providing 
good access for all and an opportunity for walking and jogging. The park contains woodlands and other 
habitats that are ideal for bird watching and general nature study, and a visit to the wild flower areas in the 
spring can be rewarded with bluebells, fritillaries, ox-eye daisies, cowslips and primroses. The arboretum at the 
park contains a wide-ranging collection of exotic tree species including Coast and Dawn Redwoods, Himalayan 
Birches, Japanese Maples, Evergreen Oaks, Hemlocks and Eucalyptus.  

Objectives

• Continue to improve and develop the arboretum

• Integrate the former pasture land into the park’s parkland landscape

• Expand and improve visitor access

• Expand and improve children’s play facilities

• Develop and improve the Bow Pool lake and associated Stew ponds

38



19  Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029

Bosworth Battlefield

The country park includes a network of surfaced trails which radiate from the famous Bosworth Battlefield 
Visitor Centre around a wonderful farmed landscape, connecting with the Ashby Canal and the Battlefield 
Railway at Shenton station. The site of the Battle of Bosworth is of national significance and international 
interest. It is infamous as the place where King Richard III lost his life and crown to Henry Tudor, and the 
beginning of the powerful Tudor dynasty.

Objectives

• Improve interpretation on the country park to reflect the landscape and wildlife of the area

• Improve the system of car park charging/replace obsolete pay and display machines

39



20  Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029

9. Communicating the strategy
Once the strategy has been approved by Cabinet, it will be available on our website. Following the publication 
of the strategy, officers will work to complete plans for individual sites which shall also be available.

10. Funding our strategy
Our aspirations are set against a backdrop of financial challenge and to deliver the strategy we will need to 
work in new and innovative ways. As we deliver the detail of our plans, we will seek to develop a financial 
model that will not only pursue grants and funding but will also welcome legacies and donations as well as 
sponsorship, advertising and gifts of social value aligned with the corporate social responsibility strategies of 
local businesses.

11. Monitoring and review
The broad outline strategy is intended to shape the future planning, design, management and maintenance 
of our country parks and open spaces. Once the strategy has been agreed by cabinet a more detailed plan 
will be developed with individual management plans for each of our main destination parks. The plans will be 
monitored, reviewed and updated on an annual basis.

12. Summary
In summary, our country parks and open spaces are an asset that we want existing and future generations 
to enjoy. They are not a statutory service or a council priority, but they are a key asset that can be used to 
support and enable many of the council’s strategic objectives. The strategy is intended to set out a direction of 
travel and provide a framework within which we can work across departments and with partners, citizen and 
communities to provide great parks for the citizens and visitors of Leicestershire.

The strategy is set out to express ambition, but it must be set within the context that the council continues 
to face financial challenges and remains as one of the lowest funded county councils in England. We will 
therefore need to adopt a more innovative approach to increasing income and working in partnership with 
partners and communities to explore funding, sponsorships and donations as well as developing a more robust 
approach to volunteering. This strategy sets out a framework for how we are going to make it happen and we 
hope that you will participate in delivering and supporting it.

40



T0
57

0

41



This page is intentionally left blank



 

CABINET – 22 MAY 2020 
 

LEADERS FARM DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES  
 

PART A 
 
Purpose of the Report  
 
1. The purpose of this report is to advise the Cabinet of the development 

proposals for the Leaders Farm site, near Lutterworth (Harborough District) 
and to seek approval for the allocation of resources necessary to support the 
associated planning application, design team fees and construction costs. 
 

Recommendations   
 

2. It is recommended that:  
 
(a) Option 2 for development of the Leaders Farm site as set out in 

paragraph 26 of the report be approved, namely  
 

 two Drive Thru restaurant units 

 a 50,000 sq ft light industrial unit (subject to successful 
negotiations with the proposed tenant) 

 further light industrial units on the remainder of the site (at an 
appropriate time in the future, subject to wider market 
assessment of the need for such units); 

 
(b) £8.2m be allocated from the Corporate Asset Investment Fund for the 

development of the Leaders Farm Site as set out in (a) above; 
 

(c) The Director of Corporate Resources, following consultation with the 
Cabinet Lead Member, be authorised to undertake all necessary 
preparatory work to enable the submission of a planning application for 
the proposed development. 

 
Reasons for Recommendation  
 
3. The development of the Council-owned land will support the delivery of both 

new business accommodation and income generating assets.  
 

4. Having reviewed the various options available to the Council, Option 2 
presents the best projected return for the capital invested based on current 
information.  

 
43 Agenda Item 6



 
Timetable for Decisions (including Scrutiny) 
 
5. Subject to approval by the Cabinet, it is intended that a planning application 

will be submitted to the County Council’s Development Control and 
Regulatory Board in July 2020. 
 

6. Subject to planning permission being granted, it is intended that the 
development will be completed by the summer of 2022. 
  

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions 
 
7. In September 2016, the County Council was granted planning approval by 

Harborough District Council for the development of a B1 employment use 
scheme and 70 allotments on the Leaders Farm site. The proposal has now 
been adopted into Harborough District Council’s Local Plan. 
 

8. The Council’s Corporate Asset Investment Fund Strategy (agreed by the 
Cabinet in September 2017) requires this Fund to be used to add to the 
Council’s portfolio of land assets to: 

 

a. Ensure that there is more a diverse range of properties available to meet 
the aims of economic development; 

b. Increase the size of the portfolio; 
c. Improve the quality of land and property available; 
d. Ensure the sustainability of the County Farms and industrial portfolio by 

replacing land sold to generate capital receipts and; 
e. Provide a revenue income stream to support ongoing service delivery. 

 
9. The County Council completed a new £2.6m estate road into the site in 2019 

to facilitate the development by providing access to the plots of land. A 
masterplan of the site, which includes the estate road, is included as the 
appendix to the report.  
 

Resource Implications  
 
10. The Council’s investment strategy approach envisages growing the Corporate 

Asset Investment Fund (CAIF) over the next 5 to 10 years, the exact level of 
investment being dependent on the availability of good investments and 
funding. The expectation is that the returns (both revenue income and capital 
growth) generated by the CAIF will have a meaningful impact on the Council’s 
funding gap.   
 

11. The Leaders Farm development would have a maximum capital cost of £8.2m 
based on the recommended option (Option 2) as set out in Part B of the 
report. This figure includes costs associated with preparing and submitting the 
planning application, fees, construction of up to 10 light industrial units and 
contingencies.  The development is expected to generate a revenue over 5 
years of £1.875m plus any capital receipts arising from potential disposals. 

 

44



12. No specific provision exists for this project in the capital programme but 
funding of £30m has been included for further acquisitions/investments 
subject to business cases.  

 
13. Further information relating to the proposal and financial estimates and risks 

are provided in Part B of this report. 
 
14. The Director of Law and Governance has been consulted on the content of 

this report. 
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure  

 
15. The report has been circulated to Mrs. R. Page CC (Lutterworth Division). 
 
Officers to Contact    
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources  
Corporate Resources Department 
Tel: 0116 305 6199   Email: chris.tambini@leics.gov.uk 
 
Jon Bennett, Head of Strategic Property Services 
Corporate Resources Department 
Tel: 0116 305 6926  Email: jon.bennett@leics.gov.uk 
  

45

mailto:chris.tambini@leics.gov.uk
mailto:jon.bennett@leics.gov.uk


PART B 

 
Background 
   
16. The Leaders Farm site is approximately 6.1 acres located adjacent to the 

A4303 south of Lutterworth.  The site is owned by the County Council.   
 
17. Outline Planning approval was granted in 2016 by Harborough District Council 

for B1 employment use which included offices and light industrial uses on the 
site.  The planning approval has now expired however the principle of 
employment use on the site has been adopted into Harborough District 
Council’s Local Plan. 
 

18. The County Council has invested £2.6m in new road infrastructure, completed 
2019, in order to provide access to the proposed development site. 
 

19. The Council has marketed the site for office use for over two years with 
limited enquiries. However, recently the Council has agreed Heads of Terms 
with two roadside restaurant providers to occupy the two Drive Thru units 
situated at the western entrance of the site totalling circa 1.57 acres. 
 

20. This leaves the balance of 4.44 acres for other development. A plan has been 
produced (appended to this report) with the support and advice of agents as 
to what would be the most viable scheme for the site. 
  

Proposal 

 

21. The proposed scheme, including the roadside restaurant units, is subject to 
planning permission being granted. Given that the proposed use of 1.57 acres 
of site are outside the planning uses allocated in the Local Plan, it will be 
necessary to show that the proposed employment use is contingent on the 
roadside restaurant scheme being delivered. 
 

22. The advice from the Council’s property consultants is that the site would be 
best suited to a light industrial scheme targeted at small and medium sized 
enterprises (SME’s) with a maximum of 10 units ranging from 1,900 sq ft up to 
50,000 sq ft in various sizes, totalling approximately 76,946 sq ft, as per the 
attached plan.  Four options for the site are given below. 
 

23. It is also of note that there is already a potential interest from a local 
purchasing consortium which is considering expanding into a 50,000 sq ft light 
industrial unit on the site. Negotiations are underway whereby the County 
Council would build the unit with the consortium paying a capital amount for 
the building.  
 

Options for Development 
 

24. Four options have been considered and appraised for the development of the 
site. 

 

46



25. Option 1 Develop the entire site including the Drive Thru units and the Light 
Industrial Units. This would require a capital contribution of approximately 
£7.95m. 
 

26. Option 2 Develop the site with the Drive Thru units, the unit for the 
purchasing consortium occupier (subject to successful negotiations) and the 
remaining site with light industrial units, subject to demand. This would require 
a capital contribution of approximately £8.2m but would be offset by a £6m 
capital receipt from the consortium occupier’s unit sale.  
 

27. Option 3 Develop the site with the Drive Thru units, the unit for the potential 
occupier and dispose of the remaining land. This would require a capital 
investment of approximately £6.44m but would be offset by a £6m capital 
receipt from the occupier and possibly a capital receipt in the region of 
£750,000 from the sale of the remaining land. 
 

28. Option 4 In the event the occupier interest does not come to fruition the 
Council could develop the Drive Thru units and dispose of the remaining land. 
This would require a capital contribution of approximately £3m offset by a land 
sale of potentially £1.75m. 
 

29. Having reviewed the Options available to the Council it is recommended the 
Council proceed with Option 2 as it offers the greatest return for capital 
investment. Consideration will be given to when the development of the light 
industrial units will take place to take account of market conditions and the 
economic climate. 

  
Financial Estimates 
 
30. The budget being requested allows development of Option 2 as described 

above with an option to not develop the additional industrial units if demand 
cannot be justified.  
 

31. The requested £8.2m is made up of the following: 
 

 £7.44m; construction of the Drive Thru units, industrial units, 
warehouse for onward sale and contingencies. 
 

 £0.76m; fees, marketing letting. 
 

 
32. The sensitivity tables for all 4 options use standard assumptions:   

 

a. Rental growth per annum of 2.0%. 
b. Capital growth of 3.68% per annum. 
c. Sale of the warehouse and land. 
d. Initial rent and rent-free periods for the Drive Thru units. 
e. Timeframe of 15 years to calculate the discounted cashflows. 

 

47



33. Appendix B to this report shows 4 sensitivity tables for each option, Net 
Present Value and Internal Rate of Return against a number of variables, 
namely rental growth%, capital growth% and initial gross rent. 
 

34. The table below shows a summary of all four options.   
 
NPV Option 15 year 20 year 25 year

1 £(.29)m £2.44m £4.78m

2 £1.69m £3.49m £5.03m

3 £1.52m £2.55m £3.44m

4 £(.05)m £1.01m £1.93m

IRR Option 15 year 20 year 25 year

1 5.67% 8.62% 10.00%

2 10.16% 12.31% 13.28%

3 12.46% 14.16% 14.92%

4 5.88% 8.80% 10.18%

Payback Option 15 year 20 year 25 year

1

2

3

4

10

15

8

15  

 Option 2 gives the Council the 
opportunity to build out the 
industrial units if the opportunity 
presents itself whilst affording 
the Council the choice to 
develop planning consent only 
for the 6 industrial units and 
subsequently sell the land, i.e. 
Option 3. 
 
Both Options 2 and 3 have 
positive net present values 
(NPV) over all timeframes and 
show a wide margin of safety as 
evidenced by the double digit 
internal rate of return (IRR). 

 
35. Sensitivity tables below show the effect of changing the base case 

assumptions on the NPV for Option 2.  In both tables below, a lower annual 
rent increase and lower gross rent or capital growth per annum still results in 
a positive NPV. 
 

######### 1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00%

315,821 £993 k £1083 k £1177 k £1273 k £1374 k £1478 k

335,821 £1189 k £1285 k £1384 k £1487 k £1594 k £1705 k

355,821 £1386 k £1487 k £1592 k £1701 k £1815 k £1932 k

375,821 £1582 k £1689 k £1800 k £1915 k £2035 k £2159 k

395,821 £1778 k £1891 k £2008 k £2129 k £2255 k £2386 k

415,821 £1974 k £2092 k £2215 k £2343 k £2475 k £2613 k

435,821 £2170 k £2294 k £2423 k £2557 k £2696 k £2840 k

Rent increase % pa

In
it

ia
l 

g
ro

s
s
 r

e
n

t

 
 
 

#REF! 1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00%

3.38% £1283 k £1390 k £1501 k £1616 k £1736 k £1860 k

3.48% £1381 k £1488 k £1599 k £1715 k £1834 k £1959 k

3.58% £1481 k £1588 k £1699 k £1814 k £1934 k £2058 k

3.68% £1582 k £1689 k £1800 k £1915 k £2035 k £2159 k

3.78% £1684 k £1791 k £1902 k £2017 k £2137 k £2261 k

3.88% £1787 k £1894 k £2005 k £2120 k £2240 k £2364 k

3.98% £1891 k £1998 k £2109 k £2224 k £2344 k £2468 kC
a
p

it
a
l 

g
ro

w
th

 %
 p

a

Rent increase % pa

 
 
 

36. Similar sensitivity tables for the internal rate of return (IRR) show that Option 2 
exhibits a wide margin of safety before the NPV would return NIL.  For 

48



completeness an NPV of NIL results at an IRR of 6.09%, the rate at which the 
council discounts future cashflows to present values. 
 

10.2% 1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00%

315,821 8.6% 8.8% 9.0% 9.2% 9.4% 9.6%

335,821 9.0% 9.2% 9.4% 9.7% 9.9% 10.1%

355,821 9.5% 9.7% 9.9% 10.1% 10.4% 10.6%

375,821 9.9% 10.2% 10.4% 10.6% 10.8% 11.1%

395,821 10.4% 10.6% 10.8% 11.1% 11.3% 11.5%

415,821 10.8% 11.1% 11.3% 11.5% 11.8% 12.0%

435,821 11.3% 11.5% 11.7% 12.0% 12.2% 12.5%

Rent increase % pa
In

it
ia

l 
g

ro
s
s
 r

e
n

t

 
 

10.2% 1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00%

3.38% 9.3% 9.5% 9.7% 10.0% 10.2% 10.4%

3.48% 9.5% 9.7% 9.9% 10.2% 10.4% 10.7%

3.58% 9.7% 9.9% 10.2% 10.4% 10.6% 10.9%

3.68% 9.9% 10.2% 10.4% 10.6% 10.8% 11.1%

3.78% 10.2% 10.4% 10.6% 10.8% 11.0% 11.3%

3.88% 10.4% 10.6% 10.8% 11.0% 11.3% 11.5%

3.98% 10.6% 10.8% 11.0% 11.3% 11.5% 11.7%

Rent increase % pa

C
a
p

it
a
l 

g
ro

w
th

 %
 p

a

 
 

 
 

37. The current national lockdown as a result of the Coronavirus could potentially 
have an effect on the viability of the development and as such the option to 
not progress the development of the 6 industrial units has been included. A 
viability review will be undertaken at key stages of the development such as 
receipt of planning approval and tender return to ensure the scheme meets 
the investment criteria. 
 

The Planning Process 
 
38. It is intended that a single detailed planning application would be submitted for 

the entire development. The planning application would be a Regulation 3 
matter – that is, a matter to be determined by the County Planning Authority - 
given the Council owns the land and will be actively involved in the 
development of the site. 
 

39. Once the planning application has been submitted, the usual public 
consultation would be undertaken by the County Planning Authority as part of 
the statutory planning process. 

 
Equality and Human Rights Implications  
 
40. There are no Equality and Human Rights Implications directly arising from this 

report.  Implications associated with the future development of the site such 
as planning applications for planning permission, will be subject to Equality 
and Human Rights Impact Assessments, as appropriate, prior to decisions 
being made.   

 

49



Environmental Implications 
 

41. As this is a Council-led development it is envisaged that the scheme will 
ensure the Council’s ambitions for a sustainable scheme are met where 
possible. This will involve ensuring the chosen construction strategy 
incorporates sustainable construction methods. Furthermore, the scheme will 
look to achieve an ‘excellent’ rating in the BREEAM assessment. This is likely 
to involve the use of Photovoltaic panels, car charging points, insulation and 
the use of best practice construction methods. 

 
Risk Assessment 

 
42. This is a medium-sized project that requires upfront investment in order to 

generate future financial returns.  The risks relate to the size of the financial 
obligations which the Council could potentially commit to. These will include 
consultancy fees, infrastructure design costs, funding, timing commitments 
and construction costs. Inevitably all of these bring a degree of risk. 
 

43. In order to minimise risk cost and value advice has been provided by external 
consultants. The scheme will be tendered and if the cost of tender returns is 
unacceptable the employment scheme could be redesigned in order to reduce 
cost. 

 
Appendix 
 
Appendix A – Site Plan 

Appendix B – Financial Sensitivity Analysis 

Background Papers  

Corporate Asset Investment Strategy 2019 – 2023 

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/documents/s144425/Appendix%20H%20-
%20CAIF%20Strategy%202019-23.pdf 

 

 

 

50

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/documents/s144425/Appendix%20H%20-%20CAIF%20Strategy%202019-23.pdf
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/documents/s144425/Appendix%20H%20-%20CAIF%20Strategy%202019-23.pdf


A

4

3

0

3

Road

Fairacres Coventry

F

a

i
r
a

c

r
e

s

 
C

o

v

e

n

t
r
y

 
R

o

a

d

INSTAVOLT

SIGN 2

SINGLE

C

O

S

T

A

D

R

I
V

E

T

H

R

U

C

A

R

P

A

R

K

E

X

I
T

E

X

I
T

C

A

R

P

A

R

K

SIGN 1

DOUBLE

SIGN 1

DOUBLE

SIGN 1

DOUBLE

COD &

CANOPY

D

R

I

V

E

T

H

R

U

O

R

D

E

R
H

E

R

E

COD &

CANOPY

ERDDS

BANNER

ERDDS

BANNER

ERDDS

BANNER

70

50

 SKY SIGN

GOAL POST HEIGHT

RESTRICTOR

DELIVERIES

PLAY

PLACE

E11 003

2

 
n

o

.
 
G

R

I
L

L

 
B

A

Y

S

MCDONALDS

COSTA

SUB STATION

C

O

S

T

A

D

R

I
V

E

T

H

R

U

O

R

D

E

R

H

E

R

E

DELIVERIES

PATIO

BIKE RACKS

O

R

D

E

R
H

E

R

E

FEEDER

PILLAR

SHARED

POLE SIGN

BANNER

FRAME

DIRECTIONAL

SIGN 1

DIRECTIONAL

SIGN 1

DIRECTIONAL

SIGN 2

HEIGHT

BARRIER

KEY

SELLER

KEY

SELLER

DOUBLE

MENU

BANNER

FRAME

EXIT POST

SIGN

A

4

3

0

3

Road

Fairacres Coventry

F

a

i
r
a

c

r
e

s

 
C

o

v

e

n

t
r
y

 
R

o

a

d

INSTAVOLT

SIGN 2

SINGLE

C

O

S

T

A

D

R

I
V

E

T

H

R

U

C

A

R

P

A

R

K

E

X

I
T

E

X

I
T

C

A

R

P

A

R

K

SIGN 1

DOUBLE

SIGN 1

DOUBLE

SIGN 1

DOUBLE

COD &

CANOPY

D

R

I

V

E

T

H

R

U

O

R

D

E

R
H

E

R

E

COD &

CANOPY

ERDDS

BANNER

ERDDS

BANNER

ERDDS

BANNER

70

50

 SKY SIGN

GOAL POST HEIGHT

RESTRICTOR

DELIVERIES

PLAY

PLACE

E11 003

2

 
n

o

.
 
G

R

I
L

L

 
B

A

Y

S

MCDONALDS

COSTA

SUB STATION

C

O

S

T

A

D

R

I
V

E

T

H

R

U

O

R

D

E

R

H

E

R

E

DELIVERIES

PATIO

BIKE RACKS

O

R

D

E

R
H

E

R

E

FEEDER

PILLAR

SHARED

POLE SIGN

BANNER

FRAME

DIRECTIONAL

SIGN 1

DIRECTIONAL

SIGN 1

DIRECTIONAL

SIGN 2

HEIGHT

BARRIER

KEY

SELLER

KEY

SELLER

DOUBLE

MENU

BANNER

FRAME

EXIT POST

SIGN

UPDATED TO SUIT CLIENT COMMENTSBH24/10/19A

THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT      DIMENSIONS ARE NOT TO BE SCALED FROM THIS DRAWING

ALL FIXINGS, TO BE DESIGNED BY APPROPRIATE SPECIALIST SUB-CONTRACTOR

ELECTRONIC DATA IS NOT TO BE AMENDED/DELETED WITHOUT ISHERWOOD McCANN PERMISSION

DETAIL DRAWINGS AT LARGER SCALE TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER GENERAL ARRANGEMENT DRAWINGS

DRAWING NO:

SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DRAWING
TITLE:

STATUS:

REVISION:

PROJECT:

6 Rose Way, Blaby Business Park,
Lutterworth Road, Blaby, Leicester, LE8 4BY

0  1  1  6    2  7  8  1  2  0  0
w w w . i m a - a r c h i t e c t s . c o . u k

SKETCH LAYOUT

A219100-LCC-LEADER-SK01

BH

DAI

1:250 AT A1

09-10-19

SKETCH

PROPOSED EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT
LEADERS FARM LUTTERWORTH
LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

51

AutoCAD SHX Text
SERVICE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
A2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
A4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
A5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
B1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
B2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
B3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
D1

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
E1

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
D2

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
D3

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
E2

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
MINIMUM 8 metre LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
OVERSPILL PARKING 50 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
SERVICE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
A2

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
A4

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
A5

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
B1

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
B2

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
B3

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
D1

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
E1

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
D2

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
D3

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
E2

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
MINIMUM 8 metre LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
OVERSPILL PARKING 50 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
SCHEDULE OF ACCOMMODATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
UNIT A - 879 SQM 9,459 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
A1 - 177 SQM 1,905 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
A2 - 175 SQM 1,883 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
A3 - 175 SQM 1,883 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
A4 - 175 SQM 1,883 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
A5 - 177 SQM 1,905 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
UNIT B - 885 SQM 9,546 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
B1 - 381 SQM 4,101 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
B2 - 251 SQM 2,701 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
B3 - 253 SQM 2,744 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
UNIT C - 885 SQM 9,546 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
C1 - 381 SQM 4,101 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
C2 - 251 SQM 2,701 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
C3 - 253 SQM 2,744 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
UNIT D - 1,649 SQM 17,748 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
D1 - 710 SQM 7,642 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
D2 - 467 SQM 5,026 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
D3 - 472 SQM 5,080 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
UNIT E - 1,659 SQM 17,856 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
E1 - 949 SQM 10,214 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
E2 - 710 SQM 7,642 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
SCHEDULE OF PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
UNIT A - 17 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
1 SPACE per 51 SQM

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
UNIT B - 17 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
1 SPACE per 52 SQM

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
UNIT C - 17 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
1 SPACE per 52 SQM

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
UNIT D - 17 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
1 SPACE per 97 SQM

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
UNIT E - 27 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
1 SPACE per 61 SQM

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
OVERSPILL - 50 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
TOTAL PARKING 145 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
TOTAL - 5,957 SQM 64,155 SQFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
OVERALL PARKING RATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
1 SPACE per 41 SQM



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B: Financial Sensitivity Analysis 

Sensitivity tables (IRR and NPV) for each of the 4 options as covered in the paper.  

A combination of gross rent, rental annual uplift and capital growth assumptions 

have been used to assess NPV and IRR. 

Option 1 Develop the entire site including the Drive Thru units and the Light 
Industrial Units. This would require a capital contribution of approximately £7.95m. 
 

 

Table 1: Sensitivity IRR 15 yrs: initial gross rent and rent increases Total acquisition cost

5.7% 1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00%

550,613 4.5% 4.8% 5.0% 5.3% 5.5% 5.8%

570,613 4.8% 5.1% 5.3% 5.6% 5.9% 6.1%

590,613 5.1% 5.4% 5.6% 5.9% 6.2% 6.4%

610,613 5.4% 5.7% 5.9% 6.2% 6.5% 6.7%

630,613 5.7% 6.0% 6.2% 6.5% 6.8% 7.0%

650,613 6.0% 6.2% 6.5% 6.8% 7.1% 7.3%

670,613 6.3% 6.5% 6.8% 7.1% 7.4% 7.6%

Table 2: Sensitivity NPV 15 yrs: initial gross rent and rent increases

1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00%

550,613 £(1051) k £(894) k £(731) k £(562) k £(387) k £(205) k

570,613 £(854) k £(692) k £(523) k £(348) k £(166) k £22 k

590,613 £(658) k £(490) k £(315) k £(134) k £54 k £249 k

610,613 £(462) k £(288) k £(108) k £80 k £274 k £476 k

630,613 £(266) k £(86) k £100 k £294 k £494 k £703 k

650,613 £(70) k £115 k £308 k £507 k £715 k £930 k

670,613 £126 k £317 k £516 k £721 k £935 k £1157 k

Table 3: Sensitivity IRR 15 yrs: initial gross rent and capital growth

5.7% 1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00%

3.38% 4.8% 5.1% 5.3% 5.6% 5.9% 6.2%

3.48% 5.0% 5.3% 5.5% 5.8% 6.1% 6.4%

3.58% 5.2% 5.5% 5.7% 6.0% 6.3% 6.5%

3.68% 5.4% 5.7% 5.9% 6.2% 6.5% 6.7%

3.78% 5.6% 5.9% 6.1% 6.4% 6.7% 6.9%

3.88% 5.8% 6.1% 6.3% 6.6% 6.9% 7.1%

3.98% 6.0% 6.3% 6.5% 6.8% 7.0% 7.3%

Table 4: Sensitivity NPV 15 yrs: initial gross rent and capital growth

#REF! 1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00%

3.4% £(883) k £(709) k £(529) k £(341) k £(147) k £55 k

3.5% £(744) k £(570) k £(390) k £(203) k £(8) k £194 k

3.6% £(604) k £(430) k £(250) k £(62) k £132 k £334 k

3.7% £(462) k £(288) k £(108) k £80 k £274 k £476 k

3.8% £(319) k £(145) k £36 k £223 k £418 k £620 k

3.9% £(174) k £ k £181 k £368 k £563 k £765 k

4.0% £(27) k £147 k £327 k £515 k £709 k £911 kC
a
p

it
a
l 

g
ro

w
th

 %
 p

a

Rent increase % pa

C
a
p

it
a
l 

g
ro

w
th

 %
 p

a

Rent increase % pa

Rent increase % pa

In
it

ia
l 

g
ro

s
s
 r

e
n

t

Rent increase % pa

In
it

ia
l 

g
ro

s
s
 r

e
n

t

53



Option 2 Develop the site with the Drive Thru units, the unit for the potential 
occupier and the remaining site with light industrial units. This would require a capital 
contribution of approximately £8.2m but would be offset by a £6m capital receipt 
from the occupier’s unit sale. 
 

 
 

Table 1: Sensitivity IRR 15 yrs: initial gross rent and rent increases Total acquisition cost

10.2% 1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00%

315,821 8.6% 8.8% 9.0% 9.2% 9.4% 9.6%

335,821 9.0% 9.2% 9.4% 9.7% 9.9% 10.1%

355,821 9.5% 9.7% 9.9% 10.1% 10.4% 10.6%

375,821 9.9% 10.2% 10.4% 10.6% 10.8% 11.1%

395,821 10.4% 10.6% 10.8% 11.1% 11.3% 11.5%

415,821 10.8% 11.1% 11.3% 11.5% 11.8% 12.0%

435,821 11.3% 11.5% 11.7% 12.0% 12.2% 12.5%

Table 2: Sensitivity NPV 15 yrs: initial gross rent and rent increases

######### 1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00%

315,821 £993 k £1083 k £1177 k £1273 k £1374 k £1478 k

335,821 £1189 k £1285 k £1384 k £1487 k £1594 k £1705 k

355,821 £1386 k £1487 k £1592 k £1701 k £1815 k £1932 k

375,821 £1582 k £1689 k £1800 k £1915 k £2035 k £2159 k

395,821 £1778 k £1891 k £2008 k £2129 k £2255 k £2386 k

415,821 £1974 k £2092 k £2215 k £2343 k £2475 k £2613 k

435,821 £2170 k £2294 k £2423 k £2557 k £2696 k £2840 k

Table 3: Sensitivity IRR 15 yrs: initial gross rent and capital growth

10.2% 1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00%

3.38% 9.3% 9.5% 9.7% 10.0% 10.2% 10.4%

3.48% 9.5% 9.7% 9.9% 10.2% 10.4% 10.7%

3.58% 9.7% 9.9% 10.2% 10.4% 10.6% 10.9%

3.68% 9.9% 10.2% 10.4% 10.6% 10.8% 11.1%

3.78% 10.2% 10.4% 10.6% 10.8% 11.0% 11.3%

3.88% 10.4% 10.6% 10.8% 11.0% 11.3% 11.5%

3.98% 10.6% 10.8% 11.0% 11.3% 11.5% 11.7%

Table 4: Sensitivity NPV 15 yrs: initial gross rent and capital growth

#REF! 1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00%

3.38% £1283 k £1390 k £1501 k £1616 k £1736 k £1860 k

3.48% £1381 k £1488 k £1599 k £1715 k £1834 k £1959 k

3.58% £1481 k £1588 k £1699 k £1814 k £1934 k £2058 k

3.68% £1582 k £1689 k £1800 k £1915 k £2035 k £2159 k

3.78% £1684 k £1791 k £1902 k £2017 k £2137 k £2261 k

3.88% £1787 k £1894 k £2005 k £2120 k £2240 k £2364 k

3.98% £1891 k £1998 k £2109 k £2224 k £2344 k £2468 kC
a
p

it
a
l 

g
ro

w
th

 %
 p

a

Rent increase % pa

C
a
p

it
a
l 

g
ro

w
th

 %
 p

a

Rent increase % pa

Rent increase % pa

In
it

ia
l 

g
ro

s
s
 r

e
n

t

Rent increase % pa

In
it

ia
l 

g
ro

s
s
 r

e
n

t

54



Option 3 Develop the site with the Drive Thru units, the unit for the potential 
occupier and dispose of the remaining land. This would require a capital investment 
of approximately £6.44m m but would be offset by a £6m capital receipt from the 
occupier and possibly £750,000 capital receipt from the sale of the land. 
 

 

Table 1: Sensitivity IRR 15 yrs: initial gross rent and rent increases Total acquisition cost

12.5% 1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00%

130,325 11.2% 11.3% 11.4% 11.6% 11.7% 11.8%

140,325 11.6% 11.7% 11.8% 12.0% 12.1% 12.3%

150,325 11.9% 12.1% 12.2% 12.4% 12.5% 12.7%

160,325 12.3% 12.5% 12.6% 12.8% 12.9% 13.1%

170,325 12.7% 12.8% 13.0% 13.1% 13.3% 13.5%

180,325 13.0% 13.2% 13.4% 13.5% 13.7% 13.8%

190,325 13.4% 13.6% 13.7% 13.9% 14.1% 14.2%

Table 2: Sensitivity NPV 15 yrs: initial gross rent and rent increases

1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00%

130,325 £1176 k £1213 k £1251 k £1291 k £1333 k £1376 k

140,325 £1274 k £1314 k £1355 k £1398 k £1443 k £1489 k

150,325 £1372 k £1415 k £1459 k £1505 k £1553 k £1603 k

160,325 £1470 k £1516 k £1563 k £1612 k £1663 k £1716 k

170,325 £1568 k £1617 k £1667 k £1719 k £1773 k £1830 k

180,325 £1666 k £1718 k £1771 k £1826 k £1884 k £1943 k

190,325 £1764 k £1818 k £1875 k £1933 k £1994 k £2057 k

Table 3: Sensitivity IRR 15 yrs: initial gross rent and capital growth

12.5% 1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00%

3.38% 11.5% 11.7% 11.8% 12.0% 12.1% 12.3%

3.48% 11.8% 11.9% 12.1% 12.2% 12.4% 12.6%

3.58% 12.1% 12.2% 12.3% 12.5% 12.7% 12.8%

3.68% 12.3% 12.5% 12.6% 12.8% 12.9% 13.1%

3.78% 12.6% 12.7% 12.9% 13.0% 13.2% 13.3%

3.88% 12.8% 13.0% 13.1% 13.3% 13.4% 13.6%

3.98% 13.1% 13.2% 13.4% 13.5% 13.7% 13.8%

Table 4: Sensitivity NPV 15 yrs: initial gross rent and capital growth

#REF! 1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00%

3.38% £1253 k £1298 k £1346 k £1395 k £1446 k £1499 k

3.48% £1324 k £1370 k £1417 k £1467 k £1518 k £1571 k

3.58% £1397 k £1442 k £1490 k £1539 k £1590 k £1643 k

3.68% £1470 k £1516 k £1563 k £1612 k £1663 k £1716 k

3.78% £1544 k £1590 k £1637 k £1686 k £1737 k £1790 k

3.88% £1619 k £1665 k £1712 k £1761 k £1812 k £1865 k

3.98% £1695 k £1740 k £1788 k £1837 k £1888 k £1941 k

Rent increase % pa

In
it

ia
l 

g
ro

s
s
 r

e
n

t

Rent increase % pa

In
it

ia
l 

g
ro

s
s
 r

e
n

t
C

a
p

it
a
l 

g
ro

w
th

 %
 p

a

Rent increase % pa

C
a
p

it
a
l 

g
ro

w
th

 %
 p

a

Rent increase % pa

55



Option 4 In the event the occupier interest does not come to fruition the Council 
could develop the Drive Thru units and dispose of the remaining land. This would 
require a capital contribution of approximately £3m offset by a land sale of potentially 
£1.75m. 
 

 

Table 1: Sensitivity IRR 15 yrs: initial gross rent and rent increases Total acquisition cost

5.9% 1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00%

130,325 4.6% 4.7% 4.9% 5.0% 5.2% 5.4%

140,325 5.0% 5.1% 5.3% 5.4% 5.6% 5.8%

150,325 5.3% 5.5% 5.7% 5.8% 6.0% 6.2%

160,325 5.7% 5.9% 6.1% 6.2% 6.4% 6.6%

170,325 6.1% 6.3% 6.4% 6.6% 6.8% 7.0%

180,325 6.4% 6.6% 6.8% 7.0% 7.2% 7.4%

190,325 6.8% 7.0% 7.2% 7.4% 7.6% 7.8%

Table 2: Sensitivity NPV 15 yrs: initial gross rent and rent increases

1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00%

130,325 £(394) k £(357) k £(318) k £(278) k £(237) k £(194) k

140,325 £(296) k £(256) k £(215) k £(172) k £(127) k £(80) k

150,325 £(198) k £(155) k £(111) k £(65) k £(17) k £33 k

160,325 £(100) k £(54) k £(7) k £42 k £93 k £146 k

170,325 £(2) k £47 k £97 k £149 k £204 k £260 k

180,325 £96 k £148 k £201 k £256 k £314 k £373 k

190,325 £194 k £249 k £305 k £363 k £424 k £487 k

Table 3: Sensitivity IRR 15 yrs: initial gross rent and capital growth

5.9% 1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00%

3.38% 4.8% 5.0% 5.2% 5.4% 5.6% 5.8%

3.48% 5.1% 5.3% 5.5% 5.7% 5.9% 6.1%

3.58% 5.4% 5.6% 5.8% 6.0% 6.1% 6.3%

3.68% 5.7% 5.9% 6.1% 6.2% 6.4% 6.6%

3.78% 6.0% 6.2% 6.3% 6.5% 6.7% 6.9%

3.88% 6.3% 6.5% 6.6% 6.8% 7.0% 7.2%

3.98% 6.6% 6.7% 6.9% 7.1% 7.3% 7.4%

Table 4: Sensitivity NPV 15 yrs: initial gross rent and capital growth

#REF! 1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00%

3.38% £(329) k £(283) k £(236) k £(187) k £(136) k £(83) k

3.48% £(253) k £(208) k £(160) k £(111) k £(60) k £(7) k

3.58% £(177) k £(131) k £(84) k £(35) k £16 k £69 k

3.68% £(100) k £(54) k £(7) k £42 k £93 k £146 k

3.78% £(22) k £24 k £71 k £120 k £171 k £225 k

3.88% £57 k £103 k £150 k £199 k £250 k £303 k

3.98% £137 k £183 k £230 k £279 k £330 k £383 kC
a
p

it
a
l 

g
ro

w
th

 %
 p

a

Rent increase % pa

C
a
p

it
a
l 

g
ro

w
th

 %
 p

a

Rent increase % pa

Rent increase % pa

In
it

ia
l 

g
ro

s
s
 r

e
n

t

Rent increase % pa

In
it

ia
l 

g
ro

s
s
 r

e
n

t

56



 

 
CABINET – 22 MAY 2020 

 
LEICESTERSHIRE YOUTH JUSTICE STRATEGIC PLAN 2020 –

2023 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY 
SERVICES 

 
PART A 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to present to the Cabinet the draft 

Leicestershire Youth Justice Strategic Plan covering the period 2020 – 
2023, attached at the Appendix to this report, and to seek approval for 
the Plan to be submitted to the County Council for approval. 

 
Recommendation 
 
2. It is recommended that   

 
(a) The comments of the Scrutiny Commission in relation to the Youth 

Justice Strategic Plan 2020-2023, be noted; 
 
(b) The County Council at its meeting on 8 July 2020 be recommended 

to approve the Youth Justice Strategic Plan 2020-2023. 
 

Reason for Recommendations 
 

3. The County Council has a statutory duty under Section 40 of the Crime 
and Disorder Act 1998 to produce an annual Youth Justice Plan. 
Following guidance issued by the Youth Justice Board (YJB) in 2015, the 
Youth Offending Service Management Boards (YOSMB) were able to 
choose whether to develop a one or three-year Plan. The new Plan will 
cover a three-year period with annual updates being provided to the 
YOSMB and YJB, so reducing the burden on the Youth Offending 
Service.  

 
4. The Youth Justice Board may request the Youth Offending Service to 

undertake further reviews of the Plan before it is next refreshed in 2021 
to ensure that it reflects changes in priorities and budget.  

 

57 Agenda Item 7



 

Timetable for Decisions (including Scrutiny) 
 
5. The draft Youth Justice Strategic Plan 2020-2023 was considered by the 

Scrutiny Commission on 8 April 2020. A summary of its comments is set 
out in Part B of the report.  

 
6. The updated three-year Plan has been considered by the Youth 

Offending Service Management Board on the 6 March 2020. There were 
no recommended changes to the plan from the Board.  

 
7. Subject to approval by the Cabinet, the Plan will be submitted to the 

County Council for approval at its meeting on 8 July 2020. 
 

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions 
 

8. The County Council has a statutory duty under the Crime and Disorder 
Act 1998 to produce an annual Youth Justice Plan which is linked to the 
funding provided to Youth Offending Services nationally by the Youth 
Justice Board. 

 
9. The draft Youth Justice Strategic Plan 2020-2023 was approved by the 

Youth Offending Management Board at its meeting on 6 March 2020. 
 
Resource Implications 
 
10. Section C of the draft Plan sets out the resourcing and funding 

arrangements for the Youth Offending Service. The County Council 
remains the major funding partner via the Children and Families Service. 

 
11. In terms of the 2020-21 budget the YJB are yet to confirm the annual 

grant and no communications have been received to date. Confirmation 
is also yet to be received regarding all partner contributions. Overall the 
budget is likely to have a slight decrease on the 2019-20 budget. 

 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 

 
12. None. 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Jane Moore - Director of Children and Family Services 
Tel: 0116 305 6340   
Email : jane.moore@leics.gov.uk 
 
Sharon Cooke, Assistant Director, Education and Early Help 
Tel : 0116 305 2649  
Email : sharon.cooke@leics.gov.uk 

58

mailto:jane.moore@leics.gov.uk
mailto:sharon.cooke@leics.gov.uk


 

 
Carly Turner – Service Manager, Youth and Justice  
Tel: 0116 305 0030  
Email: Carly.Turner@leics.gov.uk 
 

59

mailto:Carly.Turner@leics.gov.uk


 

PART B 
 
Background 
 
13. At the time of inception of Youth Offending Teams nationally in 2002 the 

Youth Justice Board provided the framework for the Youth Justice Plan, 
along with considerable scrutiny and oversight. Several years ago, Youth 
Offending Teams were given the freedom and flexibility to produce a 
Youth Justice Strategic Plan overseen by their Youth Offending Service 
Management Board (YOSMB) in line with their own timetable and 
format. The current requirement is that the Plan or annual update should 
be submitted to the YJB by the end of July 2020. The YOSMB have 
chosen the option to introduce a 3-year plan. 

 
14. The review of Early Help Services in 2018/19 led to the integration of a 

number of services into an integrated locality-based Children and Family 
Wellbeing Service (CFWS).  The YOS and Youth Teams now form part 
of locality-based teams within this Service. 

 
15. The transformation of the Early Help Services has led to YOS prevention 

staff working more closely with youth and family workers enabling a 
whole family approach to explore a young person’s problems.  During 
the last year there has been a small increase in resources with the 
addition of three workers to the two existing posts, which focus on 
providing consistent and intensive support to the most complex children 
through project responsive (outlined in Section D of the plan).  There has 
also been a joint project with the three Clinical Commissioning Groups 
and Leicester City Council’s YOS which has led to the introduction of a 
Clinical Psychologist and a Forensic Psychologist to offer direct work 
with children with ACEs (adverse childhood experiences) and to provide 
advice to YOS practitioners. (outlined in section D). 
 

Draft Youth Justice Strategic Plan 2020-2023 
 
16. The Youth Justice Plan provides an overview of how the Leicestershire 

Youth Offending Service will link into partnership arrangements and 
deliver services in line with national requirements set out by the National 
YJB. The Plan outlines the YOS’s governance arrangements and 
structure, the proposed YOS reporting schedule to the YOSMB, 
resources, local Draft performance, practice developments, priorities and 
future risks. 

 
17. The 2020-23 Plan has been introduced in a slightly different format by 

incorporating some brief case studies in response to the request of the 
Scrutiny Commission at its meeting in April 2019 when it considered the 
previous plan, as well as feedback received from partner agencies 
through the YOSMB. Short case studies that showcase the work of the 
Youth Offending Service have been embedded within the draft Plan and 
can be found on pages under sections B and D. 

 

60



 

 
18. The draft Plan highlights the continuing positive performance achieved 

by the YOS. The commitment to intervention with young people at the 
earliest opportunity is reflected in the performance of the YOS in relation 
to first time entrants into the criminal justice system compared to 
regional and national partners.  The rate of young people receiving 
custodial sentences in Leicestershire is also low compared to regional 
and national partners.  

 
19. In terms of outcomes, the most significant area of challenge concerns 

the percentage of young people in employment, education, or training at 
the end of their period of work with the YOS, and the Plan focuses on 
the YOS working together with the school inclusion team and partner 
agencies to make improvements.  The Plan also highlights the need for 
the YOS to focus on further developing how the voice of the child 
influences support, particularly in relation to those young people with the 
most complex issues.   

 
20. Section E of the Plan focuses on future risks.  The most significant 

current risk is linked to the increased understanding and influence of 
child criminal exploitation. The Plan highlights a number of priority areas 
of work linked to the response to this risk (Section D (iii) strategic and 
practice priorities)   

 
Comments of the Scrutiny Commission 

 
21. The Scrutiny Commission considered the draft Youth Justice Strategic 

Plan 2020-2023 at its meeting on 8 April 2020. Members welcomed the 
excellent work continuing to take place with families and the whole family 
approach, supported the work to provide support to those subject to 
youth referral orders which was a statutory requirement, and also first-
time entrants, and welcomed the Council’s introduction of additional 
resources, including a psychologist and forensic psychologist, that would 
support the engagement with young people who did not participate in 
education, employment or training. It was recognised that partnership 
working with other agencies was key to addressing this. 

 
22. A key area of concern related to the exploitation of children, particularly 

vulnerable children, although it was noted that all partners would focus 
on addressing this. As it was a key risk area, it would be heavily 
monitored under the revised Plan, although under current circumstances 
it was difficult to operate in the usual way as schools which were 
currently closed, played a key role in identifying and reporting such 
issues. 

 
23. Members were concerned that the Service looked at the impact of 

isolation on some families during the current crisis and how this had 
affected children and young people who might not be being supported in 
the usual way. It was recognised that the potential release of young 

61



 

offenders from young offender’s institutes because of the coronavirus 
outbreak would be unlikely to have a significant impact in Leicestershire. 

 
24. Members requested that the plan contained in Section A of the draft 

Youth Justice Plan be amended as the District structure on the map did 
not include Oadby and Wigston. 

 
25. Finally, there was some concern that the Plan was difficult to follow for 

someone who had little knowledge of the Youth Offending Services and 
members suggested that a glossary of terms and an overall summary be 
included for the future. 

 
Officer Response and Amendments to Youth Justice Strategic Plan 2020 – 

2023  

 
26. Draft Youth Justice Strategic Plan 2020-23 has been amended in light of 

consultation responses. Firstly, a slightly different format has been 
introduced by incorporating some brief case studies in light of the 
request of the Scrutiny Commission at its meeting in April 2019 when it 
considered the previous plan, as well as feedback received from partner 
agencies through the YOSMB.  Short case studies that showcase the 
work of the Youth Offending Service have been embedded within the 
draft Plan and can be found in Section B and D of the plan. 

 
27. As a result of feedback from the Scrutiny Commission in April 2020 

There have been amendments to the map contained in section A of the 
plan, reference to the Leicestershire Children’s Partnership Board 
included in section B, and a glossary of terms has been added within the 
Plan appendices. 

 
28. There has been no updated formal guidance received from the YJB in 

relation the change of structure and format of plans in 2020. 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 

 
29. An equality impact and human rights impact assessment screening has 

been completed and there are no discernible equality and human rights 
implications arising from the recommendations in this report. 

 
Risk Assessment 

 
30. A risk management plan has been incorporated into the Plan which can 

be found under Section E. 
 

Appendix 
 
Leicestershire Youth Justice Strategic Plan 2020 – 2023 
 
 
 

62



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 1 of 26 
 

 

 

 

Leicestershire 

Youth Justice Plan 

2020 – 2023 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

63



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 2 of 26 
 

 

 

Contents  

  Sections       Page  

A. Introduction      3 

        

B. Structure and Governance    4 

 

C. Resources        7 

 

D. Performance      9 

 

E. Future delivery and Risks      15 

 

Appendices  

1. Risk Management Plan      17   

2. Performance Data      22 

3. Structure       23 

4. Staffing and volunteer composition   24 

5. Glossary – Acronyms/Terms    25    

Partner Signatures       26 

 

 

 

 

 

64



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 3 of 26 
 

 

A. Introduction  

 
Leicestershire Youth Offending Team (YOT) are committed to: 

 See children first, offenders second and champion the needs of children throughout our work.  

 Listening to children and their families/carers. 

 Ensure that the services and interventions that are provided are inclusive, through challenging discrimination and promoting equality. 

 Ensuring that children are offered every opportunity to achieve their potential and make positive changes.  

 Building positive and trusted relationships with children. 
 

Leicestershire YOT is located within Leicestershire County Council's Children and Families Service.   The YOT co-ordinates the provision of Youth Justice 
Services to both Leicestershire and Rutland in line with requirements set out to statutory partners in the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. The YOS is a co-
located multi agency team which includes staff from statutory partner agencies; the 
Leicestershire County Council (LCC), Leicestershire Police, the National Probation Service 
(NPS), and Children and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS).   
 
Leicestershire and Rutland remain committed to ensuring that intervention is offered at the 
earliest opportunity.  This strength of this offer is important both in improving the outcomes 
for children and in the effective delivery of the national objectives. During 2019-2020, the YOT 
was integrated into a new Youth and Justice Service, embedded within the Children and 
Family Wellbeing Service.   This change reaffirms the emphasis on early intervention and 
enables access to additional youth work provisions and whole family 
interventions.  
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

65



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 4 of 26 
 

B. Structure and Governance  

 
i. The YOS Management Board (YOSMB) 

 
The Youth Offending Team is overseen by the Management Board, which meets four times a year and is chaired by the Chief Executive of 
Leicestershire County Council. There is high level partnership representation on the Board from Leicestershire County Council, Rutland County Council, 
East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG, West Leicestershire CCG, Leicestershire Partnership Trust, the National Probation Service and the Police and 
Police Crime Commissioner. There are good working relationships with all partners that ensure effective, integrated strategic planning and delivery of 
youth justice services.  
  
The vision of the YOTMB 
 
“It is committed to work in partnership, sharing responsibilities and providing the necessary resources, to provide effective strategic oversight and 
direction to the Leicestershire Youth Offending Service (LYOS). Its direction will ensure that the LYOS is a high performing organisation that uses the 
principle of effective practice to provide high quality individualised services to children, young people, and their families; with the principal aim of 
preventing and reducing offending, thereby making a significant contribution to safer communities”.  
 
The Board is committed to achieving this vision by:  
 
“Ensuring the co-operation of the mainstream services of the partner agencies through adequate resourcing, joint planning, shared objectives, and a 
commitment to work together to achieve better outcomes for children and young people.”  
 
To assist the YOSMB in its oversight function, a proposed annual reporting cycle has been introduced. The reporting cycle is designed to enable the 
Board to scrutinise all aspects of YOS activity and how partner agencies support the delivery of YOS services in their own organisations. Each Board 
meeting receives reports on the YOS on its financial position and performance against the key indicators  
 
 
 
 
Proposed Reporting Schedule for 2020-2021 
 
The Board will be provided with standard reports focused on finance and performance (local and national indicators). The Board will be provided with 
reports on HMIP thematic inspections and Inspection, serious incidents and significant changes to practice resulting from legislation or National 
Guidance.  

66



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 5 of 26 
 

 

Quarter YOT Service Delivery Partner Agency Reporting 

1 BAME Children, Education, Training and Employment, Workforce Development, Health 
Pathway, Case Example.  

Police  

2 Quality Assurance Plan, Serious Youth Violence, Child Exploitation, Court Work Health & Substance Misuse & 
National Probation Service  

3 IMPACT, Out of Court Disposals, Volunteering, Restorative Justice, Case Example  LCC – Education & CAMHS  

4 Youth Justice Plan, Quality Assurance, Disproportionality, Workload and Staffing,   
SEND and LAC Cohort  

LCC – Social Care & PCC  

 
ii. The Team and Structure  

 
The Service operates an East and West model and is widened to focus on Youth and Justice. Under the model, ‘East’ covering Charnwood, Melton and 
Harborough Districts and ‘West’ covers Blaby, Oadby and Wigston, Hinckley and Bosworth and North West Leicestershire Districts. Work across 
Rutland is overseen by the West Management Team to enable a coordinated response across the two authorities.  
 
The core YOT are based at County Hall and respond primarily to statutory work, co-located with Social Care colleagues. The YOT has a stable group of 
Case Managers and volunteers who are representative of the children and communities that they work with (see Appendix 4).  There has been less 
stability in some of the posts that support the YOT and this has provided some challenges with vacancies, new staff and staff released on 
secondments. A rigorous Vacancy Control process has been introduced. The YOT Managers were unchanged during transformation, which saw new 
members of the Management Team and a training programme which supported this.  

Youth and Justice has a range of services which support service delivery, CAMHS Children’s Psychiatric Nurse (CPN) for facilitating mental Health 
assessment and referrals into CAHMS, and an Adverse Childhood Experience (ACE) project Team, (made up of Clinical Psychologist and Forensic 
Psychologist), Accommodation worker, Substance Misuse treatment specialists, Education specialists, Victim Worker, Voice worker, and Liaison and 
Diversion Team (Manager, CPN and Assessment worker). Staff also have access to Care Navigators to facilitate Health related referral support.  

The prevention offer is delivered from localities and all referrals for this work are received on the Multi-Agency Referral Form and are triaged by the 
CFWS using a whole family approach. The joining of Prevention and Youth Work provides a more robust response to children, both in terms of 
intervention and building resilience within communities. To support this, these workers are based around the County in either LCC or District office 
bases.  All practitioners have easier access to support for the whole family as part of the Children and Family Wellbeing Service. The service also has a 
centrally managed Community Safety Team that supports the work delivered by the locality operational staff.  

67



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 6 of 26 
 

The Sampson Award 

The Sampson Award is an Award that was created to honour a Community Panel 

Volunteer who sadly passed away.  It is an opportunity for the volunteers to 

recognise the positive progress of a child/young person who was sentenced to a 

Referral Order.   

The 2019 Award winner had worked with the YOS since December 2018 through a 

voluntary intervention up until the February 2019 when they commenced a Referral 

Order. The child was assessed with Dyslexia and had high level of anxiety.  At the 

start of the intervention they had a negative attitude towards intervention and 

almost mistrusted the system. Whilst always attending sessions, engagement was 

superficial, and they were argumentative at times. Behaviour at home was 

challenging; abusive and aggressive at times.  There were concerns around the 

negative influence of older peers.  

The young person had several professionals supporting her including a volunteer 

mentor for several months. They engaged in various intervention sessions and 

stated that they had benefitted from mentoring and substance misuse sessions. 

Relationships at home had improved following mediation, encouraging better 

communication and negotiation. In August 2019, the young person secured a full-

time hair and beauty apprenticeship.   

The young person showed a complete turnaround in attitude and behaviour, 

particularly at home, stating that some of the things that helped them change in a 

positive way were mainly relating to them take responsibility through listening to 

professionals around her and trusting their judgement, advice and guidance. This 

young person changed their life towards a pathway to success. They deserve an 

acknowledgement for their change of attitude towards life and the positive progress 

they have made - Well Done!! 

 

The Youth and Justice Service Structure can be found in Appendix 1.  
 

iii. Partnership Arrangements  
 
In addition to the YOSMB, the YOT is fully integrated within 
partnerships across LLR: 

 Leicestershire Children’s Partnership Board 
 Leicestershire Safer Communities Strategy Board (LSCSB) 
 Leicestershire Senior Officer Group 
 Early Help Partnership Board 
 Strategic Offender Management and MAPPA Board (SOMMB)  
 Rutland Children and Young People’s Partnership Board 
 Child Exploitation Operational Group  
 Children and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) Multi 

Agency Partnership 
 Violence Reduction Network Development Group  
 Community Safety Partnerships and Joint Action Groups 
 LLR Substance Misuse Community Safety Partnership  
 Court Liaison Group  
 Leicestershire Safeguarding Children Board  
 Knife Crime Delivery Group  

 
Partnership working at an operational level is core to ensuring good 
outcomes for children.  The arrangements in place for this are: 

 Information Sharing Meetings 
 Deter Young Offender Panels 
 Professionals Meetings  
 Sign of Safety Meetings 
 

There are also several partnership commissioning arrangements in place, both or supported by the YOT and Youth and Justice. This includes Home 
Office funding through PCC for additional workers including an Integrated Offender Management post, the supporting of the LCC successful Youth 
Endowment Fund application, provision of prevention work in Rutland and the continuation of the Liaison and Diversion Project through NHS England. 
This money has enabled specific projects which focus on improving the support offered to children and contributing towards better outcomes.  
 

68



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 7 of 26 
 

C. Resources  

The period during 2019 -2020 was challenging following the transformation of Early Help Services which included the YOS, however, no cuts were 

made to Youth and Justice during this period and additional posts were funded from the YOT reserve to support delivery against local and national 

drivers.  

The Youth Offending Service continues to achieve a balanced budget comprised in the main from Local Authority core funding and the Youth Justice 

Board Grant, supplemented by partner contributions and additional grant funding opportunities. Some partner contributions are awaiting clarification 

for 2020 – 2021, including the value of the Youth Justice Grant.  Any reductions in financial contributions will need to be funded from the YOT reserve.  

Probation, Health and police partners continue to second staff into the Service.  The National Probation Service is currently revisiting contribution to 

YOT’s and it is understood that the whilst the financial offer will not change, the minimum staffing contribution will be 0.5 FTE of a Probation Officer 

nationally and potential for a Probation Service Officer supplement.   

The Service is preparing proposals for the YOSMB to consider additional funding from reserve money aligned to the plan of work rolling out ahead. 

There is also a stringent vacancy control process in place where recruitment is nominally agreed through the Assistant Director of Children’s Services 

and then validated by YOSMB that encourages innovative recruitment.  

The Service also benefits from the time and support of over 100 volunteers who commit their time to be Appropriate Adults, Community Panel 

Members, Parent Mentors and Mentors for children.  As shown in Appendix xx, these volunteers are representative of the communities our children 

live in.  

 

 

 

 

 

Youth Offending Service Budget for 2020/2021: Core Funding  

 

 

Pooled Budget 

69



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 8 of 26 
 

Agency Staffing Costs Payments in Kind Other Delegated Funds Total 

Police & Crime Commissioner £91,847 £91,847 £77,934 £169,781 

National Probation Service £73,764 £73,764 £10,000 £83,764 

Health £70,945 £70,945 £47,588 £118,533 

Local Authority: 
Chief Executives 
C&FS 
Reserve (allocated) 
Rutland 
Appropriate Adult (Leics City) 

 
 
 

  
£298,303 

£1,061,079 
£144,629 

£70,000 
£3,572 

 
£298,303 

£1,061,079 
£144,629 

£70,000 
£3,572 

 

YJ Grant   £459,804 £459,804 

Total £236,556  £2,172,909 £2,409,465 

 

Additional Funding   

IMPACT £296,700 

Total YOS Budget   £2,706,165 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D. Performance 
  

i. Performance Review of 2019/2020 – Key Performance Areas - 

Reduction in First Time Entrants (FTE) 

The FTE PNC rate per 100,000 of the 10-17 population for Leicestershire is 144 compared to 171 for the same period in 2017/2018, a 15.6% 

70



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 9 of 26 
 

reduction. Whilst nationally the number of FTE’s has fallen, Leicestershire YOS continues to remain ahead of all the comparator groupings; East 
Midlands (212), YOT Family (155), England & Wales (219) and England (220).  
 
The Children and Family Wellbeing Service introduction in April 2019 has enabled a robust whole family approach to the prevention offer to children 
and their families/carers.  Unifying Youth Work and Youth Justice has enabled a review of the prevention criteria ensuring that only those children 
where offending is a real risk are engaged with the YOS, and other children are supported with through other interventions. Intelligence from return 
interviews being undertaken within the Service is a strength as this has supporting the mapping of networks of children, enabling a more targeted 
offer to children at the earliest opportunity. This early identification is also supported by the IMPACT Team and the street-based intervention 
provided by staff.   The Out of Court Disposal Panel (OOCD) greatly supports the work to reduce the FTE number in Leicestershire. The Panel can 
offer diversionary intervention which is supported by the Police Officers seconded to the YOS.  
 

Reducing the proven rate of re-offending 

The latest Ministry of Justice data available for the binary re-offending rate after twelve months, is for both the three-month cohorts July to 
September 2017 and the aggregated quarterly cohort for October 2016 to September 2017.  With regards to the three-month cohort, the 
percentage of children re-offending after 12 months was 36.4%, which is a -8.1% decrease when compared to the previous year (44.4%).  The 
aggregated quarterly cohort percentage was 35.5%, which is a slight 0.9% increase against the same period in the previous year (34.6%). 

 
The three-month cohort comparative data reflects the most up to date performance and shows that the percentage of children re-offending in 
Leicestershire was 36.4%.  This figure is the same in comparison to the Midlands region 36.4% and a decrease in relation to national performance 
37.7%.  

 
This year has seen a spike in the exploitation of children in drug related offending, high value car crime and other associated offending has been a 
challenge for nationally and for Leicestershire.  This has seen partnership work between YOS and the Child Exploitation Hub strengthen and 
improved sharing of information through the Police Portal and seconded Police Officers.  Practitioners have been identifying children through the 
Gang Assessment Tool (GAT) and in applying for modern day slavery status through the National Referral Mechanism (NRM). This year has seen a 
small number of children present before the Courts with a positive NRM status and the YOT are currently engaged in the advocacy and tracking of 
these children; one outcome resulting in a Custodial Sentence. The NRM process is new to Leicestershire in terms of child criminal exploitation and 
the application of this has caused some tensions in working across the wider Criminal Justice partnership. Some additional challenges have related to 
other Local Authorities/Police dispersal of gang nominals across the County, particularly if there are pending arrests and charges. 
 
The prevention criteria has changed over the last year to recognise the additional support required by those children who finish their statutory 
intervention but where there are still concerns such as the strength of police intelligence, released under investigation or where the YOS are the only 
agency who have been able to maintain a relationship with the child.  
 

71



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 10 of 26 
 

Within the re-offending cohort, there are a very small number of children who have committed a high volume of offences and work is being 
undertaken to understand this further in terms of how we respond as a partnership to prevent this and will be discussed wider with the Board as 
identified in the schedule contained within this Plan.  
 

Reduce the use of custody and remand  

The use of Custody rate per 100,000 of the 10-17 population for Leicestershire from Jan 19-Dec 19 was 0.14, compared to 0.08 for the same period 
in 2018, a 0.06 increase, Performance for Leicestershire YOS continues to remain ahead of all the comparator groupings; East Midlands (0.24), YOT 
Family (0.17), England & Wales (0.26) and England (0.19). In 2017/18 the cumulative figure was 3.2% and this reduced to 2.4% during 2018/19.  
 
The cumulative data so far for 2019/20 indicates an indicative increase to 4.9% at Quarter 3, equating to 5 children, a number of whom also have 
been remanded to custody for a period of time. The YOS monitors all remands and custodial sentences and meets quarterly with the Magistrates to 
oversee the Court outcomes and the quality of YOS work.  Two children within the cohort are linked to potential child exploitation having been 
involved in high value car crime, going missing and disengaging with services. In terms of the additional remands, there is a theme of children who 
have charged with committing very serious offences and have been remanded therefore pending trial.  The children have not been known to any 
Services across Leicestershire, with one child and his family moving to Leicestershire released under investigation which translated into a charge and 
remand.   
 

The number of young people in suitable Education, Employment and Training (EET) 

Cumulative data for 2019/20 performance for EET at Quarter 3 is 57.1%. This is a reduction in performance against 2018/19 which was 64.2% and 
the lowest across the last five years.  
 
The challenges described above regarding managing performances against re-offending, custody and remand is also true of EET performance, which 
can be volatile. This data is measured against the whether children were engaged in EET at the end of their statutory programme and whether this 
was appropriate to their age and hours provided, generally this should be 25 hours or above. Where children are captured in the re-offending 
cohort, their EET status is reported on each time an Order ends. In addition to this, the specialist Education Worker post has been subject to two 
rounds of recruitment with a new and permanent worker starting late February 2020. The YOS and the new Inclusion Team have worked together to 
develop a clear pathway for children and inclusion in EET.  This is being replicated with the Virtual School for those children who are looked after or 
leaving care.  Some children engaged with YOT lack interest in EET options.  For example, those children experiencing criminal exploitation, the 
instant incentives which are often large amounts of money and validation from peers or elders, outweighs EET that is viewed as not having so many 
benefits.  Not yet reaching maturity and adverse childhood experiences contribute to the potential development of a pro-offending identity.   
 
Further work has been undertaken to ensure that practice is focused around inclusion in EET such as redefining the supervision template to ask 
specific questions and create an actions about how this is going to be improved, there is a Tableau data suite in development and additional scrutiny 
at the start of any intervention to ensure that this is addressed.   

72



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 11 of 26 
 

 
ii. Practice Developments – Review of 2019 -2020 

 

Embedding YOT within the new Children and Family Wellbeing Service (CFWS) 

The continued strong commitment from LCC for preventative work with children and families has offered an opportunity for the YOS to be 
embedded in a wider structure that offers easier access to support and opportunities to collaborate differently.  Aligning the YOT Prevention 
referral process now means that support is identified for the whole family rather than just the immediate young person, for example, parents and 
carers are being offered a Triple P parenting programme and their child is being provided with preventative youth work or a family may be referred 
focused on the young person but the triage process identified a new born baby and a vulnerable parent and support is offered within the family to 
grow strength and resilience. As the CFWS is rooted in Districts around the Leicestershire, there is a wealth of knowledge regarding community 
provisions that offer diversion away from YOT or complement exit planning when children are nearing the end of their intervention. In addition, the 
model has grown relationships with staff across the Service and has opened opportunities to meet with children and families in a variety of buildings 
that are part of the CFWS estate.  
 
The new CFWS offered the opportunity to align Youth Work and the Youth Offending Service into ‘Youth and Justice’ meaning that all of the activity 
undertaken with children aged 10-18 (24) years old. Whilst 2019-2020 was focused much on the implementation of the model, it did provide 
opportunities for staff to apply for different roles and challenges around recruitment.  The core YOT practitioner team and their direct Managers 
remained stable during this period, but the wider Management Structure grew following a emotionally difficult selection process and a training 
programme commenced to ensure that all managers were fully conversant in Asset Plus and the parameters regarding Youth Justice. It has been a 
difficult journey in terms of stability in the wider staffing team, dealing with differing practice and addressing the cultural undercurrent that is 
present during transformational change.    
 
As part of the transformation, the Core YOT practitioners were locality based, however, in December 2019, practitioners were returned to County 
Hall as this proved to be challenging in terms of ensuring quality of practice and managing service demand across the County. Feedback from the 
Staff Consultation group has focused on the impact of transformation and much of the work during 2019-2020 has focused on creating stability and 
ensuring the YOT are embedded in an updated way of working. 
 

Development of Strength and Trauma informed Practice 

The ACES Project has continued to support the development of a trauma informed practice and the service continues until 2021.  During 2019-2020, 
the team is composition changed and support is now offered via a Clinical Psychologist and Forensic Psychologist across Leicester, Leicestershire and 
Rutland. The project has trained the first cohort of staff and has now progress to focusing on new practitioners and Managers to the Service.  
 

73



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 12 of 26 
 

“Thanks Pam [Practitioner]. He’s just gone 

in! Massive step forward. Thanks for your 

support of him” 

Text from a Mum whose child refused to 

attend CAMHS appointments  

 

During this period, the ACES’s Team have offered a referral-based service that offers direct work to children around trauma which has been well 
received. Monthly Formulation Meetings take place with the staff group to further develop 
their practice around ACE’s and this work is evidenced on the case management system, within 
assessments and frames the way that practitioners are engaging and working with children.   
Liaison and Diversion has bolstered the diversionary work undertaken within the YOT and 
offers more holistic triage and support offer with a health perspective. The team and seconded 
Police have been a real conduit in linking in with those children who have been issued 
community resolutions by making contact, offering short term intervention, ensuring that 
health meets are identified and referring for more sustainable intervention.  The Community 
Psychiatric Nurse has supported the growth of trauma informed practice.   
 
 

Child Exploitation 

Over the last year the profile and response to Child Criminal Exploitation (CCE) has grown and there has been a partnership push across LLR to 
widen the response to Child Sexual Exploitation to recognise CCE under the umbrella of Child Exploitation. In relation to the YOT cohort of children 
there were two distinct geographical pockets of CCE that has required a partnership approach.  There has also been several Police Operations that 
have happened within Leicestershire as part of the national response to disrupting drug dealing across the country and reduce serious violence.  
Youth and Justice work closely with the Multi-Agency Child Exploitation Hub through daily, weekly and monthly meetings.  
 
The Service continues to advocate on behalf of children, ensuring that they are safeguarded and recognised as victims through the National Referral 
Mechanism and the tracking of this through the Criminal Justice System. Agencies across LLR are committed to working together to ensure the best 
response to exploited children. Practitioners have engaged in mapping meetings, completing risk assessments and contributing to multi-agency 
meetings to share information and improve outcomes for children. The YOSMB fully support this work.  
 
Youth Workers within Youth and Justice complete return interviews for Leicestershire missing children and the high level of uptake of interviews 
and the information gained from this has contributed to the case management of children and safeguarding. This information is accessed by YOT 
practitioners and the focus is on improving safety and wellbeing planning as a response to this.  
Project Responsive (formally IRIS) had a growth of three posts in 2019-2020 to enable intensive youth support to be offered to those children at risk 
of and involved in CCE. This team offers long-term support to children and the workers are enabled to spend time to build a trusted relationship 
with the child and focus on the factors that encourage desistance from engaging in offending behaviour.  
 

 

74



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 13 of 26 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

iii. Strategic and Practice Priorities for 2020-2023 

 

In addition to the national and local performance indicators, the YOT will focus on development of the below aspects of strategy and practice over the 

next three years.  This will also ensure compliance with the new National Standards issued by the YJB for 2019-2020: 

Health  Vulnerable and protected Groups 

 Continued journey around trauma informed practice through 
support from the ACE’s Project.  

 Planning for the end of end of the commissioned L & D Project within 
the YOT and the transition to an all age LLR provider.  

 Consistency around the identification and response to Speech, 
Language and Communication needs within the YOT cohort. This was 
identified as a gap following activity undertaken as part of the Ofsted 
SEND Inspection.  

Ensure that groups are not disproportionately represented in the YOT 
Cohort and that practice and partnership arrangements are strong and 
support the child first, offender second approach: 
 BAME children 
 SEND children both on an EHC Plan and where enhanced payments 

are being received by education providers.  
 Looked after Children  
 Child Exploitation 

Case Study – Feedback from a Worker 

Child A was on 9-month Referral Order for ABH. Their Order was 

revoked at Leicester Youth Court due to excellent progress and 

completion of all the targets on the Referral Order.  

“Child A had experienced significant bullying which had led to his 

offence, but the change in him as a young man has been 

significant and very noticeable. His parents are extremely 

grateful for all the support the family has been provided… I 

would like to make everyone aware that this is a full team effort, 

and that you have all been a part of such a positive 

outcome…Child A’s Mum has asked me if she can give back to 

the YOS and would like to talk to our mentoring service about 

possibly becoming a parent mentor.” 

 

Project Responsive Case Study 

A 16-year-old female began working with Project Responsive 

due to her first offence meeting the custody threshold. She 

was NEET, there was evidence of extensive childhood trauma 

and she was had care leaver rights. 

Project Responsive helped her access and maintain education 

and voluntary work.  

She has voiced that she found the help very beneficial as she 

had given up on education thinking that her offences would 

make any successful career too hard to obtain. Some days 

motivation is very low but having somebody telling her that 

she can do it has given her encouragement. She enjoys being 

in education as it gives her a sense of belonging and makes 

her feel better about herself. 

 

75



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 14 of 26 
 

 
 

 Further develop the YOT and partnership response to Restorative 
Justice.   

 

Data Child First, Offender Second - Practice and Quality Assurance 

 Developing Tableau dashboards that support both case management 
and strategic oversight of the children engaged with the YOT.  

 Taking opportunities to interrogate data, whether YOT or Partnership 
to improve outcomes for children.  

 

 Improve quality of assessments to ensure that they are child focused 
and address reasons for offending through an asset-based model 
that is tailored to the individual.   

 Improve the quality of reviews in Asset Plus.  
 Guidance is reviewed and updated to reflect the journey to trauma 

informed practice, building a pro-social identity and desistence 
theory.  
 

Participation of Children, Families and Carers  Education, Training and Employment  

 Ensure that the voices of children, their carers and families are 
present throughout all work undertaken with the YOT.  

 Explore a strategy focused on participation and peer mentoring.  

 Ensuring there is a clear pathway for children and support around 
EET and additional oversight and scrutiny. The challenge continues 
around children being involved in education but not to the required 
level.  

 Developing new partnership arrangements to developed ASDAN-
based awards, works experience and securing opportunities for skill-
based qualifications such as the CSCS Card.  

 

Victims  Constructive Resettlement and Transitions 

 Develop a Tabelau data suite using data to enable project-based 
work focused around victims.  This would include YOS children who 
are victims. 

 Ensure that opportunities for victims to engage in restorative justice 
are innovative.  

 Ensure that Asset Plus assessments contain a through assessment of 
risks and controls to victims.   

 Further collaborative development of the transitions work including 
ensuring that the mechanisms for oversight and accountability are 
strong.  

 Maintaining relationships with the Custodial Estate.   

E. Future Risks – 2020-2023 
 
The primary objective for partners linked to youth offending, is to prevent and divert young people away from the Criminal Justice System. The risks to 
delivery against this overarching objective fall broadly into 3 categories: failing performance against national indicators, failing to maintain quality 

76



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 15 of 26 
 

standards leading to the increase likelihood of reoffending and more serious reoffending and further reductions in funding leading to reductions in 
youth focused resources and services. The below table explores these risks in further detail, including actions to mitigate these.  
 
 

National Indicators  

FTE’s - For many years the YOS has been at the forefront of reducing FTEs. As a result, it is difficult to see how much further FTE can continue to fall 
and the challenge is to maintain low numbers. The performance around FTE’s is affected by several factors, including national crime trends and 
partner agency procedures. Targeting child exploitation and gang type activity does pose a risk to future FTE performance as experience of this is 
that activity is often directed at a national level.  
 
Mitigation: To continually review the Prevention and Youth Work offer and ensure that this is effective and meets the need of children, formalise a 
consistent response to Community Resolutions, in light of L&D Project ending within the YOT, to monitor the effectiveness of the Out of Court 
Disposal Panel to ensure that interventions and assessments are timely, effective and proportionate, to ensure a robust quality assurance 
programme for out of court disposals, monitor the delivery of cautions within 20 days of Panel, to undertake a learning exercise of the current NEET 
cohort, partnership Reports to the YOS MB, strong and effective partnership working with the Court and advocacy for young people.  
 
Re-offending and the use of custody - The exploitation of children in the movement of and dealing drugs and high value car crime and other 
offences associated with organised crime and serious violent crime is a significant issue for Leicestershire.  This remains the biggest risk to YOS 
reoffending, custody and EET performance. It is proving extremely difficult to encourage and support children to disengage from once they become 
involved. This is a national issue and Police Operations have been driven by the National Crime Agency, both covert and overt. Responses from local 
Police Teams in the challenge of managing such behaviour in Districts has the potential to impact on performance rates.  The incentives for children 
to engage with exploiters are high and the risk is that re-offending rates continue to increase.  

 
Mitigation: To ensure effective oversight of the Re-offending Toolkit to offer additional support/interventions to those most at risk of re-offending, 
to reduce the frequency and seriousness of re-offending within the YOT, where nationally this continues to be a challenge, to continue the practice 
journey around embedding trauma informed practice, to work in partnership to address ways of identifying and exiting children from exploitation 
safely as a partnership, To promote partnership responses to children who re-offend through desistence theory and increasing the knowledge of 
trauma informed practice, to monitor the impact of nationally driven police enforcement operations has on the YOT cohort, to monitor the 
application of a positive National Referral Mechanism (NRM) on outcomes in Court, review the mechanisms for oversight for children assessed as 
high risk. To ensure that the YOT regularly reviews the packages of support that are offered as and that they are alternatives to Custody, including 
support across the partnership, to ensure that children who are remanded or sentenced to custody are safe and well supported applying the 
principles of child first, offender second, to ensure that Court staff feel confident in presenting and challenging the Court and promote alternatives 
to Custody. 
 

77



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 16 of 26 
 

Maintaining Quality Standards 

The YOS seeks to improve practice by the development of a learning culture and has been developing this approach over recent years. This has led 
to practitioners being able to look at their practice in a more open way. The quality assurance approach is validated by a series of Tableau which are 
in development and testing as Careworks is limited in the information that can be provided from the system alone. Delays in live performance data 
are risk to managing both performance and quality.  
 
The YOS has the following in place to ensure quality standards:   

 In depth look at 20 cases, at least one from each practitioner and all custody cases, to provide a benchmark of quality across the Service and 
provide feedback to practitioners and Managers; 

 Improved the focus of supervision and ensuring that both personal and case supervision is as required and of a good quality;    

 Ensuring management oversight is of a high quality and supports the production of high quality work; 

 Monthly Youth Justice workshops; 

 Addressing practice issues proactively with practitioners and managers; 

 Providing information and assurance to YOS MB.  
 

 

YOS funding and resources 

 
Changes to partnership funding arrangements in the YOS is a risk.  At the time of producing the Youth Justice Plan, there are arrangements that 
require agreements and validation, along with confirmation of the Youth Justice Grant has not been provided. In 2019/20 there was an opportunity 
to secure approximately £75k to mitigate against spending from the YOS reserves from Home Office funding and an addition £3k was received by 
the YJB, however, any additional funding is often short-term.  The YOS MB oversee the financial position of the YOS on a quarterly basis and assist in 
the management and spending of the budget. At the present time, there are no savings attached to the YOS.  Depletion of the reserves and cuts to 
funding would mean that savings would inevitably need to be made.  
 
In addition to the funding is the contribution of staff who are a valued and integrated resource to the Service in preventing offending and re-
offending by children. This is as defined in the Crime and Disorder Act 1988. 

 

 
Appendix 1  
 
Risk Management 

 

78



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 17 of 26 
 

Risk management is a critical element in ensuring the delivery of key priorities and outcomes.  Risk management will be active and 
incorporated into our performance management framework.  
*Key - Impact and likelihood receiving a score between 1 and 3 with1 representing the higher level of risk 

 

Risk Causes (s) Consequences (s) 
Risk 
Owner 

Im
p
a
c
t 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o
d

 

R
is

k
 S

c
o
re

 List of current 
controls 

Further 
Actions / 
Additional 
Controls 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 

Im
p
a
c
t 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o
d

 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l R

is
k
 

S
c
o
re

 

The numbers of 
First Time 
Entrants (FTEs) 
each year will 
level off or 
increase. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Year on year 
decreases in 
FTE numbers 
over the last 5 
years across 
Leicestershire 
 
 

Increase in the number of 
children entering the CJS 
 
Additional stress on already 
limited resources 
 
Reductions in FTEs could 
result in higher re-offending 
rates, as those young people 
who do enter the youth 
justice system do so at a 
more serious level and are 
therefore more likely to re-
offend than previously. 
 
 

Head 
of 
Service 

2 2 4 

 
Monitor numbers 
of FTEs on a 
quarterly basis. 
 
Identify areas of 
poorer 
performance and 
resolve issues 
identified in 
conjunction with 
partners. 
 
Scrutiny of the 
OOCD Panel as 
a partnership.  
 
 
 

Oversight 
from the 
YOS MB 

2 1 2 

 
Increase in 
offending and 
reoffending 
 
 

 
 
Exploitation of 
children by 
organised 
crime leading 

 
Increased numbers of 
children being drawn into 
criminal behaviour.  
 
Complex and vulnerable 

 
 
 

Head 
of 
Servi
ce  

 
 
 
2 

 
 
 
2 

 
 
 
4 

 
 
YOS operational 
management 
team reviewing 
all case on a 

 
 
 
Continue to 
develop with 
partners 
early 

 
 
 

2 

 
 
 

1 

 
 
 

2 

79



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 18 of 26 
 

Risk Causes (s) Consequences (s) 
Risk 
Owner 

Im
p
a
c
t 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o
d

 

R
is

k
 S

c
o
re

 List of current 
controls 

Further 
Actions / 
Additional 
Controls 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 

Im
p
a
c
t 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o
d

 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l R

is
k
 

S
c
o
re

 

 
 

to increase in 
children being 
drawn into 
offending 
serious and 
violent 
offences 

children are more likely to 
offend involved in 
serious/violent crime. 

month basis of all 
new FTE and 
repeat offences, 
to make sure the 
YOS acts quickly 
to meets 
children’s needs 
and changing 
circumstances.  
 
Development of 
ACE Project to 
deal with Trauma 
 
Integration with 
the CSE Hub 
processes and 
oversight. 
Pathway for 
children into the 
Hub.  

intervention 
Strategies to 
divert young 
people away 
from 
exploitation 
 
 
Act quickly to 
resolve 
young 
people who 
are being 
exploited 
when they go 
missing. 
 
The use of 
Tableau data 
to improve 
knowledge of 
the re-
offending co-
hort 

Future 
restructuring of 
YOS service 
delivery 
 

Reductions in 
National and 
local funding 
 

 

 

Loss of effective Service 
delivery due to organisation 
difficulties brought about by 
the changes.  

Loss of prevention services 
which impact on national 

Head of 
Service 2 3 5 

Senior 
Management 
oversight of any 
potential 
restructure  
 
Engagement with 
children, families 
and carers. 
 

Oversight from 
the Board 

2 2 2 

80



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 19 of 26 
 

Risk Causes (s) Consequences (s) 
Risk 
Owner 

Im
p
a
c
t 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o
d

 

R
is

k
 S

c
o
re

 List of current 
controls 

Further 
Actions / 
Additional 
Controls 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 

Im
p
a
c
t 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o
d

 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l R

is
k
 

S
c
o
re

 

indicators.  

 

 

 

Engagement with 
staff, key partners 
and YOS MB.  
 

Low level use 
of remand and 
custody not 
maintained or 
reduced 

Potential 
increase in 
children 
committing 
serious 
offences due 
to exploitation  
 
Increased 
complexity of 
cases, making 
engagement 
more difficult 
and therefore 
the risk of 
noncomplianc
e with Court 
orders 
 

increase cost to Local 
Authority to fund remand 
beds (national shortage) 
 
 
Impact on YOS and C & F 
resources to manage young 
people in custody 

Head of 
Service 2 3 5 

Maintain current 
management 
oversight and 
joined up working 
with CE Hub.  
 
Close liaison with 
the court and 
quality assurance 
 
Maintain skills 
within bail and 
Court Team 
 
Ensure robust 
collaborative 
packages as an 
alternative to 
custody.  
 
Ensure reducing 
reoffending in 
high risk group of 
children a 

Ensure 
that 
resources 
are 
effectively 
targeted to 
minimise 
any 
potential 
impact. 

2 1 2 

81



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 20 of 26 
 

Risk Causes (s) Consequences (s) 
Risk 
Owner 

Im
p
a
c
t 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o
d

 

R
is

k
 S

c
o
re

 List of current 
controls 

Further 
Actions / 
Additional 
Controls 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 

Im
p
a
c
t 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o
d

 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l R

is
k
 

S
c
o
re

 

strategic priority 
 
 

82



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 21 of 26 
 

Risk Causes (s) Consequences (s) 
Risk 
Owner 

Im
p
a
c
t 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o
d

 

R
is

k
 S

c
o
re

 List of current 
controls 

Further 
Actions / 
Additional 
Controls 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 

Im
p
a
c
t 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o
d

 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l R

is
k
 

S
c
o
re

 

Risk of Harm 
and 
safeguarding 
risks posed by 
or to young 
people not 
effectively 
identified or 
managed  

  
Risk not 
effectively 
managed by 
practitioners 
or 
partnerships 
 
ASSET plus 
assessments 
not effectively 
overseen and 
verified  
 
More children 
exposed to 
exploitation 
leading to 
then being at 
increased 
Safeguarding 
risk and 
becoming 
involved in 
serious and 
violent 
offences. 

Child commits a serious 
offence 
 
A serious incident receives 
significant negative media 
coverage.  
 
Impact on victim satisfaction 
and public confidence 

Head of 
Service 3 1 3 

Maintaining an 
effective quality 
assurance process 
 
Effective 
management 
process to monitor 
risk of harm and 
vulnerability 
processes to 
ensure delivery is 
maintained at a 
high standard, 
including 
benchmarking.  
 
Ensure lessons 
from national and 
local inspections, 
and taken forward 
with YOS 
managers & 
through YOS 
practice 
development 
sessions 
 
Ensure annual 
training priorities & 
plan are linked to 
lessons learnt 
process  

 

Ensure 
that 
resources 
are 
effectively 
targeted to 
minimise 
any 
potential 
impact. 

2 1 2 

83



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2023    

Page 22 of 26 
 

 
Appendix 2  
 
Summary of Performance 2014/15 – 2018/19  

 

Performance against the MOJ Indicators and the Local YOS indicator for  
2014/15 to 2018/19 to date:  
 

National Indicator Target  April to 
March 

2014/15 

April to 
March 

2015/16 

April to 
March 

2016/17 

April to 
March 

2017/18 

April to 
March 

2018/19  

Reduction in First 
Time Entrants Year on 

year 
reduction 

-14.0% 
reduction 

34.7% 
reduction 

+1.6% 
Increase 

(2) 

 
-17.6% 

reduction 

 
-3.85%  

reduction 

Reduce the proven 
rate of re-offending 

1.13 1.25 0.82 0.91 
 

0.71 
 

1.37 

Custodial 
Sentences 
 

<5% 4.2% 4.9% 1.3% 

 
3.2% 

 
2.4% 

Number of young 
people in suitable 
Education, 
Training and 
Employment 

80% 73.7% 74.2% 64.5% 

 
 

78.6% 

 
 

64.2% 

 
 

First Time Entrants FTE’s are young people who have received a substantive outcome 
which includes youth cautions (YC), youth conditional caution (YCC) 
and statutory outcomes through the Court.                       
 

Rate of reoffending The reoffending rate is measured by tracking all young people who 
receive a substantive outcome (includes YC’s, YCC’s, and all court 
outcomes) between 1st of January and 31st of March. The reoffending of 
the entire cohort is monitored each quarter for a 12-month period to 
determine the reoffending rate. 

Custodial sentences The percentage figure is determined by monitoring the percentage of 
young people who appear at court, who go onto receive a custodial 
sentence. 
 

Number of NEET 
children 

This is determined by the percentage of young people not in 
employment, education, or training, at the end of their court order. 
 

 
 

 
 

 

84



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2022 

Page 23 of 26 
 

Appendix 3  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

85



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2022 

Page 24 of 26 
 

Appendix 4  
 
The following table shows Staffing of Leicestershire YOS by Gender and Ethnicity, including volunteers for June 2018. 
 

 

 Ethnicity and Gender Managers 
Strategic 

Managers 
Operational 

  

Practitioners 
  

Administrative 
  

Volunteer 
  

Total 
  
 

  Female Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female 

White British 1  1 8 28 2 10 18 48 29 87 

White Irish            

Other White       1    1 

White & Black 
Caribbean            

White & Black African            

White & Asian            

Other Mixed    1 3    1 1 4 

Indian    9 9     9 9 

Pakistani            

Bangladeshi            

Other Asian            

Caribbean  1   3   1  2 3 

African            

Other Black     2   1 1 1 3 

Chinese            

Any other ethnic group        1  1  

Not Known            

Total 1 1 1 18 45 2 11 21 50 43 107 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

86



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2022 

Page 25 of 26 
 

 
Appendix 5  
 

Glossary of Acronyms  
 

 

YOS          Youth Offending Service - the local terminology for youth offending services.  

LYOS       Leicestershire Youth Offending Service 

YOT          Youth Offending Team - national terminology 

YOSMB   Youth Offending Management Board - The local body that has oversight of YOS performance that sits on a quarterly basis. 

FTE           First Time Entrant into the criminal justice system  

CFWS       Children and Family Wellbeing Service (The LYOS forms part of this service) 

ACE’s       Adverse Childhood Experiences 

NRM       National Referral Mechanism - For young people appearing at Court and suspected of being exploited in the course of the crime. 

EET           Education, Employment, and Training 

CCE         Child Criminal Exploitation    

 
 
 
 
 
 

87



Leicestershire – Youth Justice Plan 2020 - 2022 

Page 26 of 26 
 

 
Partner Signatures 
 
 

 

 

Name of Chief 

Officer 

Signature Date 

Chief Executive, Leicestershire 
County Council 

J Sinnott 
  

Director of Children and Family 
Services, Leicestershire County 
Council 

J Moore 

  

Chief Constable, Leicestershire 
Police S Cole 

 

 

 

Head of Leicestershire and Rutland 
National Probation Service C Maclean 

  

Leicestershire and Rutland Police 
and Crime Commissioner W Bach 

  

Joint Chief Executive, Clinical 
Commissioning Group – Leicester, 
Leicestershire and Rutland 

A Williams 
  

Chief Executive, Rutland County 
Council 

H Briggs 
  

 
 

 

88



 
 

CABINET – 22 MAY 2020 
 

DATES OF COUNCIL MEETINGS 2020/21 AND 2021/22 

 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to ask the Cabinet to recommend the 

County Council at its meeting on 8 July 2020 agrees dates for Council 
meetings for the next two municipal years. 

 
Recommendation 
 
2. That the County Council be recommended to hold meetings on the 

following dates during the next two municipal years:- 
  

Wednesday 30 September 2020   

Wednesday 2 December 2020 

Wednesday 17 February 2021 (to consider the budget) 

Wednesday 19 May 2021 (Annual Meeting) 

Wednesday 7 July 2021 

Wednesday 29 September 2021 

Wednesday 1 December 2021 

Wednesday 23 February 2022 (to consider the budget) 

Wednesday 18 May 2022 (Annual meeting) 

 
Reason for Recommendation 
 
3. To comply with the Local Government Act 1972 and the County 

Council’s Standing Orders. 
 
Timetable for Decisions (including Scrutiny) 
 
4. Subject to agreement by the Cabinet, the County Council will be asked 

to agree the dates on 8 July 2020. 
 
Background 
 
5. Standing Order 1(2) requires that in addition to the Annual Meeting of 

the Council and any meetings convened by the Chairman or members 
of the Council, meetings of the Council for the transaction of general 
business shall be held on such days as may be determined by the 
Council on the recommendation of the Cabinet. Dates for the 2021/22 

 

  
 

89 Agenda Item 8



municipal year have been included in order to provide members with 
advance notice of future meetings. 

 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
6. There are no equality and human rights implications arising from this 

report. 
 
Background Papers 
 
7. None. 
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 
 
8. None. 
 
Officer to Contact 
 
Mo Seedat - Head of Democratic Services  
Chief Executive's Dept. 
Email  mo.seedat@leics.gov.uk    0116 305 6037 
 
 
 
 
 
 

90

mailto:mo.seedat@leics.gov.uk

	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 28 April 2020.
	4 Coronavirus (Covid-19) Impact and Response of the County Council.
	5 Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 - 2029.
	APPENDIX Country Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019-2029

	6 Leaders Farm Development Proposal.
	Appendix A Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Leader-SK01-A1


	Appendix B Financial Sensitivity Analysis

	7 Leicestershire Youth Justice Strategic Plan 2020-23.
	APPENDIX Youth Justice Strategic Plan 2020 - 2023

	8 Dates of Council Meetings 2020-21 and 2021-22.

